Public Document Pack

SCRUTINY BOARD (CHILDREN'S SERVICES)

Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on
Thursday, 7th September, 2006 at 9.30 am*

(* A pre-meeting will take place for ALL members of the Board at 9.00 am)

MEMBERSHIP

Councillors
J Bale (Chair) - Guiseley and Rawdon

J Chapman - Weetwood
B Cleasby - Horsforth

R D Feldman - Alwoodley
A Harrison - Garforth and Swillington

V Kendall - Roundhay
L Mulherin - Ardsley and Robin Hood
T Murray - Garforth and Swillington
K Renshaw - Ardsley and Robin Hood
B Selby - Killingbeck and Seacroft

Co- opted Members (Voting)

Mr E A Britten Church Representative (Catholic)

Prof P HJ H Gosden - Church Representative (Church of England)
Mr R Greaves - Parent Governor Representative (Secondary)
Mr C Macpherson - Parent Governor Representative (Special)
Mrs S Knights - Parent Governor Representative (Primary)

Co-opted Members (Non-Voting)

Mr T Hales Teacher Representative

Ms C Foote - Teacher Representative

Mrs S Hutchinson - Early Years Development and Childcare

Partnership

Mr P Gathercole - NCH Representative

Ms T Kayani - Youth Work Partnership Representative
Agenda compiled by: Gerard Watson Principal Scrutiny Advisor:
Telephone: 247 4325 Kate Arscott
Governance Services Tel: 247 4189

Civic Hall
LEEDS LS1 1UR

Produced on Recycled Paper



AGENDA

Item
No

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No

APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS

To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information

Rules (in the event of an Appeal the press and
public will be excluded)

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

To identify items where resolutions may be moved
to exclude the public

LATE ITEMS

To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration

(The special circumstances shall be specified in
the minutes)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To declare any personal/prejudicial interests for the
purpose of Section 81(3) of the Local Government
Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 13 of the Members’
Code of Conduct

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence from the
meeting

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

To receive and approve the minutes of the
previous meeting held on 13™ July 2006 as a
correct record

1-10



Item
No

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No

10

11

MEMBERS' QUESTIONS

To receive a report from the Head of Scrutiny and
Member Development which gives Members the
opportunity to ask questions of the Director(s) who
chair the Corporate Priority Board which matches
the Scrutiny Board’s portfolio, or the Director’s
nominee

ADOPTION IN LEEDS - SESSION ONE

To receive a report from the Head of Scrutiny and
Member Development which details the evidence
to be considered as part of the first formal session
of the Scrutiny Board’s Inquiry into Adoption in
Leeds

ADOPTION IN LEEDS - SESSION TWO

To receive a report from the Head of Scrutiny and
Member Development which details the evidence
to be considered as part of the second formal
session of the Scrutiny Board’s Inquiry into
Adoption in Leeds

YOUTH SERVICES

To consider a report from the Head of Scrutiny and
Member Development which sets out and invites
Members to approve draft terms of reference for
the Board’s inquiry into Youth Services

WORK PROGRAMME

To receive a report from the Head of Scrutiny and
Member Development which details the Scrutiny
Board’s current Work Programme

11 -
12

13 -
56

57 -
136

137 -
142

143 -
168



ltem Ward/Equal Item Not Page
No Opportunities | Open No

12 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

Thursday, 12™ October 2006 at 9.30 a.m. in the
Civic Hall, Leeds

(Please note that a pre-meeting is scheduled for all
members of the Board at 9.00 a.m.)




11

12

13

Agenda ltem 6

SCRUTINY BOARD (CHILDREN'S SERVICES)
THURSDAY, 13TH JULY, 2006
PRESENT: Councillor J Bale in the Chair
Councillors J Chapman, B Cleasby,

R D Feldman, A Harrison, V Kendall,
L Mulherin, T Murray, K Renshaw and

B Selby
CO-OPTED Mr E A Britten Church Representative (Catholic)
MEMBERS Prof PHJH Gosden Church Representative
(VOTING): (Church of England)
Mr R Greaves Parent Governor Representative
(Secondary)
Mr C Macpherson Parent Governor Representative
(Special)
Mrs S Knights Parent Governor Representative
(Primary)
CO-OPTED Mr T Hales Teacher Representative
MEMBERS Ms C Foote Teacher Representative
(NON- Mr P Gathercole NCH Representative
VOTING): Ms T Kayani Youth Work Partnership
Representative

CHAIR'S OPENING REMARKS

The Chair welcomed all in attendance to the July meeting of the Scrutiny
Board (Children’s Services), especially Councillor A Harrison and Ms T
Kayani who were both attending as Members of the Board for the first time.
The Chair also welcomed both Executive Members for Children’s Services, in
addition to Mrs S Knights who had recently been re-appointed to the position
of voting co-opted member, Parent Governor Representative (Primary).

LATE ITEMS

In accordance with his powers under Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the Chair admitted to the agenda draft terms of
reference for the Scrutiny Board inquiry into Adoption in Leeds, which was to
be considered as part of agenda item 15. The document had been
unavailable at the time of the agenda despatch.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
The following Members declared personal interests, due to their respective
positions as either school or college governors:-

Councillors Bale, Cleasby, Kendall, R D Feldman, Harrison, Mulherin,
Renshaw, Selby, Mr C Macpherson, Mr R Greaves, Mr E A Britten and Mrs S
Knights.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 7th September, 2006

Page 1



14

15

16

17

Mr C Macpherson declared a personal interest in agenda item 11, due to his
daughter being on the roll of the North West Specialist Inclusive Learning
Centre (SILC) from September 2006 and a personal interest in agenda item
15, having been approved as an adopter. (Minute Nos 20 and 24 refer).

Professor P H J H Gosden declared a personal interest due to being a
member of the School Organisation Committee.

Mr P Gathercole declared a personal interest in agenda item 14, due to being
a representative for NCH which provided services to looked after children.
(Minute No 23 refers).

Further personal interests were declared throughout the meeting.
(Minute Nos 21 and 23 refer).

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
An apology for absence from the meeting was received on behalf of Mrs S
Hutchinson.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
RESOLVED - That the minutes of the Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)
meeting held on 9™ June 2006 be approved as a correct record.

MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
RESOLVED - That the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
meeting held on 5" June 2006 be noted.

DISCUSSION WITH EXECUTIVE MEMBERS

The Board received a report from the Head of Scrutiny and Member
Development which enabled Members to discuss the Board’s priorities for the
forthcoming municipal year with the Lead and Support Executive Members for
Children’s Services.

In attendance at the meeting to respond to Members’ queries and comments
were Councillor Brett, Lead Executive Member for Children’s Services,
Councillor Harker, Support Executive Member for Children’s Services,
Rosemary Archer, Director of Children’s Services and Chris Edwards, Chief
Executive of Education Leeds.

Following an overall update on children’s service provision in Leeds from both
Executive Members, a question and answer session ensued. The main areas
of debate were as follows:

e Members sought clarification on the criteria used to define a child as
‘vulnerable’ and the mechanisms established to prevent children from
falling into that category;

e Further information was given on the proposed children’s trust
commissioning arrangements and on the methods which would be
used to consult Members on these proposals and various other

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 7th September, 2006

Page 2



18

children’s services issues on an ongoing basis, including Member
seminar arrangements;

e Emphasis was placed upon the intention to increase partnership
working arrangements both at local and district level when delivering
children’s services in Leeds.

RESOLVED - That the discussion with Executive Members for Children’s
Services regarding the Board’s priorities for the forthcoming municipal year be
noted.

(Councillor Murray joined the meeting at 10.00 a.m. during the consideration
of this item)

MEMBERS' QUESTIONS

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which
afforded Scrutiny Board Members the opportunity to put questions to the
relevant service Director and which also sought views on how Members
wished to deal with this agenda item at future meetings.

Councillors Brett and Harker, Lead and Support Executive Members for
Children’s Services respectively and Chris Edwards, Chief Executive of
Education Leeds, were in attendance to answer Members’ questions.

The Chief Executive of Education Leeds fielded a range of questions
regarding the administration and serving of Fixed Penalty Notices in Leeds
which had been submitted prior to the meeting. In summary, the answers
submitted to the Board addressed the following issues:

e the number of Fixed Penalty Notices issued in Leeds since the
introduction of the scheme;

e the protocol established in Leeds which enabled the Education Welfare
Service only to issue Fixed Penalty Notices;

e the number of cases where the Education Welfare Service had refused
to issue Fixed Penalty Notices despite requests from schools and the
reasons for such refusals;

e the number of Fixed Penalty Notices which had been issued in respect
of parents taking their children out of school during term time;

e the reasons why the Education Welfare Service had refused to issue
Fixed Penalty Notices to those parents who had taken their children out
of school;

e the extent of the consultation process which had preceded the
introduction of the Fixed Penalty Notice scheme;

e the ways in which the monies collected by the scheme were allocated.

Members then made further enquiries into the procedures surrounding the
serving of Fixed Penalty Notices. Following the submission of a specific
example where the Education Welfare Service had refused to issue a Fixed
Penalty Notice despite a school’s wishes, the Chief Executive of Education
Leeds invited the Member in question to discuss the issue further with him
outside the meeting.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 7th September, 2006

Page 3



19

20

RESOLVED -

(a). That the information contained within the report be noted;

(b). That the Members’ Questions item of business only be included as an
agenda item if prior notice of questions has been received by the time the
agenda is due for publication.

FORMAL RESPONSE - CHILDREN ACT INQUIRY

The Board received a report from the Head of Scrutiny and Member
Development which detailed the formal response to the recommendations of
Scrutiny Board (Children and Young People) which arose from its inquiry into
the implementation of the Children Act in Leeds.

In attendance at the meeting to answer Members’ queries and questions were
Keith Burton, Lead Chief Officer, Children’s Services and Louise Tonkinson,
Communications and Marketing Manager.

Following a question and answer session regarding the progress being made
in response to several of the inquiry’s recommendations, Members proposed
that the draft consultation and engagement toolkit detailed within the action
plan could be submitted to the Scrutiny Board prior to it being submitted to
Executive Board for formal adoption.

Members then noted that further update reports relating to the implementation
of the Children Act in Leeds were intended to be submitted to the October
2006 and January and April 2007 meetings of the Board.

RESOLVED -

(a). That the report and information appended to the report be noted;

(b). That the draft consultation and engagement toolkit be submitted to the
Board prior to it being submitted to Executive Board for formal adoption;

(c). That further update reports on the progress of the implementation of the
Children Act in Leeds be submitted to the October 2006 and January and
April 2007 meetings of the Board.

FORMAL RESPONSE - SPECIALIST INCLUSIVE LEARNING CENTRES
INQUIRY

Members received a report from the Chief Executive of Education Leeds
which detailed the formal response to the recommendations made by the
Scrutiny Board (Children and Young People) following its inquiry into
Specialist Inclusive Learning Centres (SILCs).

Paul Barker, Team Leader and Carol Jordan, Strategic Manager, both of
Education Leeds were in attendance to answer Members’ queries and
questions.

A summary of the recently published report from the House of Commons

Education and Skills Select Committee, entitled ‘Special Educational Needs’
had been circulated to Members for information.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 7th September, 2006

Page 4



Following a brief summary of the information detailed within the report, a
question and answer session then ensued. The main areas of debate were as
follows:

e the extent to which a coherent SILC strategy was emerging throughout
the city;

e the measures being taken to improve the morale of both SILC staff and
parents of children attending the centres, and the effect that uncertainty
surrounding staffing levels could have on morale;

e the ways in which the funding arrangements of the SILCs were being
developed to reflect the changing patterns of their service delivery;

e the methods which were being used to interact with parents, and the
need for active engagement to be part of the SILCs’ communications
strategy;

e the actions which had been taken following a review of the SILCs’
partnership arrangements in Leeds;

e timescales relating to the review of information received by parents
which advised them of the SILCs’ admissions procedure and the
possibility of the results from such a review being circulated to
Members for information;

e the measures which were being taken to ensure that adequate
opportunities for staff development existed both in SILC and
mainstream settings;

e the capacity of the portage service currently delivered in Leeds;

e the models of governance which had been considered to reflect the
partnership nature of the SILCs in Leeds;

e the capacity that the Organisational Change Team would have to
support those schools facing significant change;

e the ways in which the Making Leeds Better initiative may impact upon
the health services provided to SILCs in Leeds;

e the quality of training received by staff in mainstream schools who
taught children with special educational needs.

It was then proposed that given the complexity of the issue, a working group
could be established to monitor the progress of the actions detailed within
Education Leeds’ formal response, in addition to the issues raised during the
meeting.

RESOLVED -

(a). That the report and information appended to the report be noted;

(b). That a working group comprising of Councillors Bale, Harrison, Kendall,
Mr E A Britten, Ms C Foote, Mr T Hales and Mr C Macpherson be established
to monitor the progress of several actions detailed within Education Leeds’
formal response to the inquiry, in addition to the issues raised during the
meeting.

(Mr T Hales joined the meeting at 10.35 a.m. during the consideration of this

item and Mr C Macpherson left the meeting at 11.05 a.m. at the conclusion of
this item)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 7th September, 2006

Page 5



21

FORMAL RESPONSE - SECONDARY ACHIEVEMENT INQUIRY

A report was submitted by the Chief Executive of Education Leeds which
detailed the formal response to the recommendations made by the Scrutiny
Board (Children and Young People) following its inquiry into Secondary
Achievement.

In attendance at the meeting to answer Members’ questions were Gary
Milner, 14-19 Strategy Co-ordinator and Mike Cooper, Centre Manager, both
of Education Leeds.

Following a brief summary of the details contained within the report, a
question and answer session ensued. The main areas of debate were as
follows:

in response to Members’ concerns regarding the low number of
primary schools which had uploaded teacher assessment and pastoral
data for local high schools to access as of mid-dJune 2006, Members
requested an urgent update on this issue;

the reasons why such a modest target of 50% of all learners in year 10
to receive Individual Learning Plans by September 2006 had been set,
and the methods which were being used to increase the number of
learners benefiting from Individual Learning Plans;

clarification was sought on the actions being taken to review the
adequacy of the safeguarding arrangements concerning work
experience and work placements, and it was proposed that an update
on the issue could be submitted to Members prior to the December
2006 meeting when the Secondary Achievement inquiry was next
scheduled to be considered by the Board;

further information was provided on the progress which was being
made to ensure that a range of accredited routes for demonstrating
functional skills were available for learners in Leeds, including the
proposed diploma pilot project;

the mechanisms which had been established to ensure that
opportunities were in place for teachers to explore and develop new
methods of delivering the curriculum;

clarification was sought on the progress which had been made in
relation to an event to raise employer awareness of the benefits to be
gained from providing work placements;

Members sought assurances in relation to the lack of response
timescales which had been incorporated into the report.

RESOLVED -

(a). That the report and information appended to the report be noted;

(b). That an update on the number of primary schools in Leeds uploading
teacher assessment and pastoral data for high schools to access be provided
to Members as soon as possible;

(c). That an update on the actions being taken to review the adequacy of the
safeguarding arrangements concerning work experience and work
placements be submitted prior to the Scrutiny Board meeting scheduled for
December 2006;

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 7th September, 2006

Page 6



22

23

(d). That a further report updating Members on the progress made in relation
to the recommendations of the Scrutiny Board (Children and Young People)
be submitted to the Scrutiny Board in December 2006.

(Councillor Murray declared a personal interest in this item due to being a
governor of Thomas Danby College)

FORMAL RESPONSE - INQUIRY INTO RECRUITMENT, RETENTION AND
WORKLOAD OF CHILDREN'S SOCIAL WORKERS

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which
detailed the formal response to the recommendations made by the Scrutiny
Board (Children and Young People) following its inquiry into the Recruitment,
Retention and Workload of Children’s Social Workers.

In attendance at the meeting to respond to Members’ questions was Tony
Griffin, Head of Community Services — Children, Social Services.

Having raised concerns over the payment for individual Criminal Records
Bureau (CRB) checks, the Board was assured that employees within Social
Services were not required to pay for their own checks.

In response to Members’ questions regarding the time it was currently taking
to recruit social workers, the Head of Community Services — Children
undertook to provide Members with the relevant data.

RESOLVED - That the report and information appended to the report be
noted and that a further update be provided in January 2007.

(Ms C Foote and Councillor Renshaw left the meeting at 12.00 p.m. and
12.05 p.m. respectively, during the consideration of this item)

MONITORING SUPPORT TO CHILDREN IN NEED AND IN PUBLIC CARE
The Board received a joint report from the Director of Social Services and the
Chief Executive of Education Leeds which detailed statistics relating to an
agreed framework for monitoring the provision for children who were either in
need or in public care.

In attendance at the meeting to answer Members’ queries and concerns were
Stuart Cameron-Strickland, Senior Quality Performance Review Officer and
Tony Griffin, Head of Community Services — Children, both from Social
Services.

Following an enquiry from Members regarding the early availability of
comparative data from those local authorities which Leeds was currently
benchmarked against, the Board questioned the statistics within the report
regarding the time taken to administer core assessments in Leeds. Members
also commented on the progress in providing Personal Education Plans for
looked after children.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 7th September, 2006

Page 7



24

25

Members then requested that actual figures in addition to percentages were
detailed within any future reports of this nature, to enable the Board to make a
more comprehensive assessment of Leeds’ current performance.

RESOLVED - That the statistical information detailed within the report be
noted.

(Councillor Murray declared a personal interest in this item, as his wife was
employed to work with children in a similar capacity as was detailed within the
report)

ADOPTION IN LEEDS

A report was submitted by the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
which sought the Board’s approval of draft terms of reference for the inquiry
into Adoption in Leeds, which had been circulated to Members prior to the
meeting.

Having noted that the draft terms of reference detailed Sheffield City Council
as a possible contributor towards the inquiry, it was recommended that the
terms of reference were revised to enable the Board to visit the most
appropriate local authority at the time.

A discussion relating to the inherent difficulties which existed when trying to
adhere to timescales within the adoption process then followed.

RESOLVED -

(a). That the report and information appended to the report be noted;
(b). That subject to the removal of the specific reference to Sheffield City
Council as a possible contributor towards the inquiry, the draft terms of
reference for the inquiry into Adoption in Leeds be approved.

WORK PROGRAMME

The Board received a report from the Head of Scrutiny and Member
Development which detailed the Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) Work
Programme for the remainder of the Municipal Year.

Following a discussion relating to the current schedule of meetings, Members
proposed that all sessions scheduled to consider the inquiry into Youth
Services were brought forward by one month to reflect the urgency of the
inquiry. It was also suggested that an additional meeting could be organised
if appropriate.

RESOLVED -

(a). That the report and information appended to the report be noted;

(b). That the youth services inquiry be rescheduled in order to complete it
earlier than proposed in the current work programme.

(Ms T Kayani left the meeting at 12.20 p.m. during the consideration of this
item)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 7th September, 2006

Page 8



26

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
Thursday, 7" September 2006 at 9.30 a.m. in the Civic Hall, Leeds.
(Pre-meeting scheduled for 9.00 a.m.)

(The meeting concluded at 12.25 p.m.)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 7th September, 2006

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Agenda ltem 7

Originator:  Kate Arscott

Tel: 247 4189

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)
Date: 7 September 2006

Subject: Members’ questions

Electoral Wards Affected: Specific Implications For:

Ethnic minorities

Women

Disabled people

Narrowing the Gap

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Last year, each scrutiny board was required to include a standard item on its agenda to
enable members to ask topical questions of the relevant senior officers, without the
need for a full inquiry or written reports.

1.2 Members’ questions is no longer a required item for each scrutiny board meeting.
However, the facility remains available for those boards that wish to do so to ask
questions of the relevant director(s) at board meetings.

1.3 The Scrutiny Board (Children and Young People) found this facility to be a useful way
of developing a positive ongoing dialogue about current topics with senior officers,
without the need for detailed work on every issue.

1.4 Following discussion at the board’s meeting in July, members agreed to retain the
facility but agreed that members’ questions would be included as an agenda item only if
prior notice of questions has been received by the time that the agenda for the meeting
is published (normally eight days before the meeting).

1.5 The scrutiny support unit has received prior notice of questions for this meeting, and the
Director of Children’s Services and the Chief Executive of Education Leeds will be
attending the meeting to respond.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 That the board identifies any issues for further scrutiny arising from the members’
questions session.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Agenda Iltem 8

Originator:  Kate Arscott

Tel: 247 4189

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)
Date: 7 September 2006

Subject: Adoption in Leeds — Inquiry Session One

Electoral Wards Affected: Specific Implications For:

Ethnic minorities

Women

Disabled people

Narrowing the Gap

1.0 Introduction

1.1 At the board’s first meeting in June, members agreed to carry out an inquiry into
adoption in Leeds as one of their major pieces of work this year.

1.2 The board appointed a small working group to draft terms of reference for the inquiry
which were agreed at the board’s July meeting. A copy of the agreed terms of
reference is attached as Appendix1.

1.3 The first and second formal sessions of the inquiry were scheduled for this meeting.
The first session focuses on providing a general context to the adoption service.
Attached at Appendix 2 is a report which outlines the information requested from the
Social Services department for this session.

1.4 Social Services staff involved in adoption will be at the meeting to present the
information and respond to members’ questions and comments.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 The board is requested to consider the issues raised by the first session of this inquiry.

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) Inquiry
Adoption in Leeds

Terms of reference

Introduction

Through its routine performance monitoring activity, the Scrutiny Board
(Children and Young People) identified rates of adoption as an issue of
concern in February 2006. As a result the board suggested that
adoption in Leeds should be a topic for scrutiny in 2006/07; this was
agreed at the first meeting of the Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)
on 9" June 2006. Adoption has also been highlighted as an area for
improvement in the Annual Performance Assessment process.

In order to decide on an appropriate and manageable focus for the
inquiry, the board commissioned a small working group from amongst
its membership to scope the inquiry. The working group met with a
senior officer form Social Services on 30" June.

The working group discussed adoption as one of a range of options for
achieving permanence and stability for children who are not able to
remain with their birth parents. Members recognised the immense
value of other outcomes including fostering, special guardianship and
residence orders in achieving this.

However, in order to provide a clear focus, the working group decided
to recommend that the inquiry concentrate on looking at possible ways
of increasing adoption rates, reflecting the view that a secure
permanent parental relationship is the ideal outcome for our children.

Members were concerned to examine the causes of any delays in the
systems for approving adopters, identifying children as available for
adoption and subsequently matching children with adoptive parents.
They were also concerned to look at strategies to increase the pool of
people prepared to adopt children who were considered harder to place
for whatever reason, for example older children, sibling groups,
children with developmental difficulties and children of African,
Caribbean or mixed heritage.

The board hopes that this inquiry will assist the council in securing
better outcomes for children and young people in relation to the
‘staying safe’ theme of Every Child Matters and the Children and
Young People’s Plan.

Page 15



2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.0

5.1

Scope of the inquiry

The purpose of the inquiry is to make an assessment of, and where
appropriate make recommendations on, the following areas:

e The ‘supply and demand’ aspects of identifying and matching
children and adoptive parents

e Funding and capacity issues, and other potential causes of any
delays or tensions in the adoption processes

e The role of regional co-operation and work with voluntary agencies.

Comments of the relevant director and executive member

In line with scrutiny board procedure rule 11.4 the views of the relevant
director and executive member have been sought and have been
incorporated where appropriate into these terms of reference. Full
details are available on request from the scrutiny support unit.

Timetable for the inquiry

It is envisaged that the inquiry will take place over four sessions. The
inquiry will conclude with the publication of a formal report setting out
the board’s conclusions and recommendations.

It is planned that the inquiry will include a visit to another authority and
the opportunity to meet more informally with people who have direct
experience of adoption.

The length of the inquiry is subject to change in the light of emerging
evidence.

Submission of evidence

Session One — 7" September 2006

To consider general background information on:

e The current legislation in relation to adoption

e The role of Social Services as an adoption agency

e The various stages in accepting a child for adoption

e The various stages in approving adopters

e The various stages in matching children with adopters

e Alternatives to adoption, including special guardianship and
residence orders

Page 16



5.2

5.3

54

5.5

Session Two — 7™ September 2006

To consider information specific to Leeds:

e Analysis of the profile of prospective adopters and adoptees in
Leeds

e Funding for the adoption service

e Underlying reasons for current performance and measures being
taken to improve

e Recruitment and training of potential adopters
e The work of the regional consortium
e The work of the post adoption support service

Working Group activities

It is hoped to arrange for board members to meet with adoptive
parents, people waiting to adopt and adopted children.

It is also hoped to arrange a visit to another authority to see what

lessons can be learned (using comparator information to identify a
higher performing authority of a comparable size).

Session Three — 16" November 2006

To consider information on other agencies involved in the adoption
process:

e The role of the courts

e The role of the adoption panels

e The role of voluntary and community sector agencies
To consider national research on good practice

Session Four — 16" November 2006

To consider members’ findings from the working group activities

To discuss the issues arising from the working group activities with
officers from Social Services

To consider the board’s emerging conclusions and recommendations

Page 17



6.0
6.1

Witnhesses

The following witnesses have been identified as possible contributors
to the Inquiry:

Social Services staff involved in adoption and post adoption support
Representation from the regional consortium
Court services

CAFCASS (Children and Family Court Advisory and Support
Service)

Representation from an Adoption Panel

Representatives of voluntary and community organisations involved
in adoption

A local authority with good performance
Adopted children

Adoptive parents

Prospective adopters

Page 18



Originator:
Rodger Walker
Tel:2243592

Report of the Chief Officer Social Services

Report to Scrutiny Board

Date: 7/9/06 Session one

Subject: Inquiry into Adoption Services in Leeds

Electoral Wards Affected: Specific Implications For:

Ethnic minorities

Women

Disabled people

Narrowing the Gap

Executive Summary

1. Purpose Of This Report

1.1 This report is to the Scrutiny Board group which is looking at adoption services in Leeds
and provides information for session one of the group which meets on 7" September as
addressed in the terms of reference (paragraph 5.2) of the Scrutiny Board.

2. Main Issues

The current adoption leqgislation

2.1.1 During the last few years there has been a great deal of attention given to
adoption issues. The National Adoption Standards were first introduced in 2001 which
included for the first time qualitative requirements and timescales to be met in individual
cases; following this were the government targets that monitor the proportion of children
adopted from care; subsequently the National Minimum Standards which were introduced
with the Care Standards Act 2000 in April 2003 via the Local Authority Adoption Service
Regulations.

These prescribe in detail the way in which the Adoption agency must carry out each aspect
its work and Leeds City Council Adoption agency had its first inspection against these
standards in March 2005. Lastly is the introduction of the Adoption and Children Act 2002,
which aims to make the process of adoption more efficient and transparent and increases
the opportunity for looked after children to be adopted, where appropriate.

2.1.2 It also introduced new arrangements for supporting adopted children and their
adoptive families so that at any time after adoption adoptive families can ask for an

assessment (including financial assessment) of their support needs. It also allows birth
Page 19



families to apply for contact or to alter the contact arrangements with the adopted child. We
have created a new post adoption support team in Leeds and hope that this will increase the
number of people willing to adopt more challenging children.

2.1.3 The Leeds Adoption Agency must belong to a local consortium of Adoption Agencies
and we were part of the original group which set this up (addendum 1).

We must also send details of people approved as adopters and children awaiting adoption to
the National Adoption Register (addendum 2), so that if there are adopters waiting elsewhere
in the country who might match a Leeds child or vice versa a match can be suggested for
our consideration. Seven children were placed last year via this route. One adopter received
a match in this way.

2.1.4 There are other implications of the Act to do with the court process and updating the

law in line with the 1989 Act (addendum 3) but the above provisions are the main issues for
us as an Adoption agency but some further provisions of the Act are mentioned below.

3 Role of Social Services as an Adoption agency

3.1 Every local authority must either act as an Adoption agency or make provision for these
services to be carried out, usually through a voluntary agency such as Barnardo’s or NCH.

This means that the Adoption Agency will recruit, assess and support adoptive parents,
accept children as suitable for adoption and approve proposed matches between children
and approved adopters.

3.2 The process is detailed below in flow charts attached (addendum 4) but, briefly ,the case
for children and applications for approval go before an adoption panel who make a
recommendation for or against and then these recommendations go to the “Decision
maker”(currently the Chief Officer —Children’s Services) for ratification or not. Under the new
Act the two adoption panels must have independent Chairs. The volume of business makes
a third panel necessary and we are in the process of looking at setting this up.

3.3 One of the changes introduced by the new Act was the right of adoptive applicants to be
seen by the adoption panel and to be able to refer their application to an independent panel
for review if they are turned down. This panel (IRM) can recommend, but not make the
Adoption Agency change its decision.

3.4 The local authority Adoption Agency must also have an ASSA (adoption services
support adviser) who will keep an eye on adoption support matters within their department
and act as a visible person to people outside the department. This person must be a senior
manager and is currently the Chief Officer (Children’s Services).

3.5 Another thing the local authority must now do is to provide an independent source of
advice on adoption to birth parents and we carry out that obligation by an arrangement with
After Adoption Yorkshire a voluntary Agency based in Leeds which offer support, counselling
and advice independently of the neighbouring local authorities.

Page 20



4 Stages in the adoption process for both children and adopters.

4.1 The attached flow charts describe the process by which children needing adoption and
people wishing to adopt are eventually brought together.(addendum 4)

4.2 All prospective adoptive parents are provided with a written guide to the process at the
beginning of their interest in becoming adopters. (addendum 5)

5 Alternatives to adoption.

5.1 The new approach to providing security to children separated from their birth families
emphasises permanency rather than any one solution such as adoption.

5.2 This recognizes a range of situations which may require different solutions. In particular
the issue of a child’s attachment to its birth family is important, and while the child may
recognize that it needs a family other than its birth family in which to grow up, it does not
want to be adopted and lose its formal connection with the family. In these circumstances a
Special Guardianship order will meet the need. It severs the connection with the Social
Services but does not amount to full adoption. (addendum 6)

Relatives and current foster carers are the people most likely to choose this route to
permanency as an alternative to adoption.

5.3 Another alternative is a Residence Order which again severs the connection with the
Social Services and gives some legal parental responsibility to the carer but recognizes
perhaps an active connection between the child and its birth family. (addendum 7)

5.4 Lastly the carer and child may wish for the continued involvement of a social worker and
the support of the social services. In this case a permanent foster placement is identified
where the child can grow up but remain the responsibility of the social Services.

5.5 In all the alternative routes to permanency we try to ensure roughly equal financial
provision, where appropriate, so the choice of permanency is not influenced by financial
support but is decided by what is best for the child and carer. A foster carer, for example,
who wishes to apply for a Special Guardianship or Residence Order, can rely on the same
level of financial support as they received as a foster carer.

6 Recommendation

Members of the Scrutiny Board are asked to note the information presented in this report
and its appendices to inform the first session of the inquiry.

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



uondopp suipaau
USIPIIYD HO) 12112301 Suiy.a0 4

sa21dopp 10f uoyvwiofuy

dll

I wngwa0dy

SHUYSHIOA . w

SATEAL ¥ PURSUY 10§ 195159y uondopy
» a0 § uondopy Yy 4vvy

‘24D SLIQIUIY 2IN1I0SSY

Y0 A sopaswivg uondopy
) djoyie)
HON

-lapnjaul asvqoipp
WHIJIOSUOD 4] 4o UOISAEIUE 10 Saun [
ANQLIUG 1Y} $I1UEY L1npun]o 4

SAUTY "y “13)SBIUO( *soul|

AN PRUIAYS BuIpryf sey S{a0 & ‘{ngy

‘AJ[SUIRY ‘Barysyao YION] *So9]YI1y
PI2U3YE A ‘3epIapie]) ‘paojpeay ‘spaar]

&

=S IN [paoy

-:apnjaul
WRILIOSUO)) 3Y) JO SIIQUILA

NN SI0 YduUpIBAIU
LTOOEYT €110 ‘PL

V8 TS™] SpadT
atenbg wdang 1
HON 072
10}BUIPI0-0)) WINTJIOSUO)
oy arqqaQ

~SPMA(J 12D

Page 23



qunwadeid yowa ut spepap oty

AU 0V yIesm s iy ay) pu JONdOMm
(BI208 5 Py 2 jo igisuodsar a st

1] "SadumAaoTe puw sjunds siuswied sapnjaul
SIY L ARUDTT S PLYD Y] JO SUONIHPUOD

PUT W] AU I2PUN 9PRW AR SIUSWIIN[J

¢ S1a1uaond Suppupulf moqp 1wy 44

CAND3LIP 1Yo

[BI208 § A[IWURY 3U1 £J00U |13 10]8UIPIC

-0 26 yajew afqussod v s1 2101 || (1w
STUL YW POYIIBIU 3¢ PIOd O U2IP]IYD S
ALY JT DS 01 YI2YD B UNI [[1Aa PUR PIAIODOU
RIE ASLL SB UOOS SB SATUIERY DY) JO S{mIap
A T21UD [1M J01RUIPIO-OD WRTLIOSUOD M,
"(Aduafe oy

Aq 08 op o1 patsanbar J1 gaiIes 10 ) jeacidde
WOIL SYIUOW ¢ []]R WNILOSU0D ai

Ul SI9Q LU J3I0 0] J[GR[IBAR QI8 SITJIUIR |

CHNLLI0SH0D 21} (G paaapisuo)
2q 0] 31quIINAD S5 UBf 240 UIY 4

ST 01 PRAUISUOD dary stpdope ay)
eyl suipiaord pasordde o $au1 se uoos se
WIILIOSUOD 3y 01 W3S 2ue sperop smdopy

senuunf uo vonvuiiofuy

‘oued tondope ayr {g

PRRIBE SLUYMNTIU 2 DI0Jq LOISSNISIP 1aymy
101423 I0A [RID08 § PIyn 241 Im padurLe
ST Sunoatr e yarew enusod v nogn
aansod (291 Laq1 1 sy oyl ouo PR
AYLJO SITBLP PIPAIOL U [[IM 19y 0Mm
[B120S § S{HURL AU 19NI0M [RIDOS § Apwm)
AU WRUOD []iw K21} {[ILE) JO 201012 1517
B UO PAPIIOP SEY JSYI0M [BLI0S AY) 20U()

PHY YL 10y K[wey e

Surputy 10 ajqisuodsal S1 oy 19Y1om [e120%
) 011U2S 29 [t ST “dn UmBIp 2aq Jjim
satjiuey sissod 9 o1 dn oSy v pys ay
HILM 2IBT PINOM JEYL J[QR|IBAR 218 S| (UIR)
AUE JT 305 0) SYIIUD PUB ISBGRIEP 21)) 010
STIPIAP S PIIUD Y} SIS JOIRUIPIO-00 2y |

Jxau suaddpy mmy 44

JI0M [RID0S § PlIgd a1
AQ HOTBUIPIO-09 WNILOSUCD BU1 01 Juas g
[[1% S[IEIAD 112U V0TSSP SIUT (1M paaIde
SeY 1n0o oY) pue juswadeld sandope ue

TULPAIIL SE PAFAUIPE UG SBY PIIGD B uay A

"UIAPIY ) U wonpULIOfu]

Adope 01 paaoadde sumdope
pur uoIdar ayy ut uondope Sunmae uaip)iys
U0 UOTIRWIOUL BUIP[OU ASBAMEP B SUIRUIRUL

0(AL JOIBUIPIO-0) B SBY WNIOSUO ) 3y |

sandope paroadde yim way

SURYUI| g R2IR 3U1 W UAIP[IYD 10] sarjuny
Burpul) jo sampiqissod 21 fuiseasou

JO wne 2y Yila uoidal ay) ur sa1auaie
uondope [fe 1a1ado) sBULIQ WNILIOSUOD A |

S WINILIOSUO )
uoydopy aanysyiof ay) st iy y

Page 24



This leaflet explains what the
Adoption Register is and
how it can help

children needing
adoption to be
matched with
the right family
for them.

Phatos posed by models

Photogrephs by John Birdsall Photogropty




£

Why do we need an Adoption Register? him/her. Brief details of the families identified and of
their adopticn agency will be sent to the child’s social

worker who will consider the proposed link further.

There are currently obout 4,000 children waiting to be placed in
adoptive famities. There are also many people approved as
prospective adopters wha are waiting 1o be malched with the “right”
child for thermn. Adoplion agencies de not have detailed information
about all the children and famifies outside their own region, so the
Adoption Register will work with adoption agencies and adoption
consortia Yo make sure that all children and families have the best
chance of finding a suifabie match.

Families
Agencies can refer prospective adopters to the
Adoption Register as soon as they have been
“approved” by the agency and will usually do this if it
seems unlikely that the adopters will be matched quickly with
a suifable child in their own region. Agencies must refer
prospective adopters 1o the Adoplion Register three months after they
have been approved if there is not a match with an identified child being
actively pursued.

What is the Adoption Register?

The Adoption Register has two maojor elements.

Agencies who are referring famifies 1o the Adoption Regisfer must certify
that they have the families’ consent to referral. You can decide that you do
adoption where their cwn agency has not been able to find the right not wish o give your consent to referral to the Adoption Register but this
adoptive famity, and details of approved adopters awaiting o will, of course, reduce the oppertunity for you fo be matched with an
placement where their own agency has not been able to match them apprapriate child.

with appropriate children.

There is a computer database that stores details of children awaiting

Photagraph by John Birdsall Photegraphy

Self-referrol

If your agency has not already sent your details fo the Adoption Register,

you will be able fo refer yourself 1o the Register. You must waif to do this

until at least three months after the date on which your agency approved
you as an adopter,

There is also a slatt team of experienced database operators and
family placement secial workers who will ook at the information on the
database to see whether they can suggest possible "mafches” between
children and prospective adopters.

Page 26

Register Self-referral Form (AD 02)

If you wish to refer yourself to the Adoption Register, please complete a self-
referral form, which is available in paper form from your adoplion agency or
can be downloaded from the website: www.adoptionregister.org.uk, and
forward it to the Adoption Register for England and Wales, Unit 4, Pavilion
Business Park, Wortley, Leeds, 1512 6A). When Adopticn Register staff
receive your seff-referral form, they will contact your agency and ask for
your details to be sent to the Adoption Register.

How will the Adoption Register work?

Children
Agencies will refer to the Adoption Register those children who have a
plan for adoption but where there is nat already a fink identified locally
which is being actively pursued. The children wiit be referred 1o the
Register at the latest by three months after the agency has formally
decided that adoption is in the child's best interest and either o full
Care Order with a plan for adoption has been made, or there is an
Interim Care Order and all the required consents, including that of
the Court, have been obtained, or the child is accommeodated and
the consent of those with parental responsibility has been obtained.

Matching children with adoptive families

Once your details have been recorded on the Register database, a search
will be undertaken to identify child(ren) who match your approval profile.
Refevant details of your family, including o written descriplion (profite;, and
Once a child’s details have been recorded on the Adoption Register details of your approving agency will be sent to the childiren)'s social worker
datebose, a search will be undertaken to identity potential adopters for who will consider the proposed link further.



and Wales

Information about your family can initially be sent cut up fo five times ta
different social workers for consideration with children. Al this point your
register enfry will be put “on hold” whilst the social workers are given
time to pursue possibie links with any of the children If none of the
suggested links is pursued, your detoils on the Adoption Register
database will again be made available fo enable further searches and
links to be made with other children.

Telephane helpline: 0870 750 2176

As a prospective adapter, you will be able to contact the Register direct
on the above telephone number. Once we have checked your identity,
we will confirm your details have been referred to the Regisler, give you
informatien about the number of times your details have been sent out
to social workers for consideration, and give you general advice. If your
defails have been sent ouf for consideration but a link is not being
pursued, you can contact your social worker and ask about the reasons
given by the child's social worker for not pursuing the link.

How do | know information about me N
will be kept safe? g
]
o

Infermation about you will be entered on the dolabase only when we
have your egency’s confiemation that you have given your consent.

Access to the dafabase is by means of resiricted passwords.

Adoption Register staff have all been subject t¢ a Criminal Records
Bureau police check and have signed confidentiality agreements.

Information about you will be sent only to other approved adoption
agencies and only for the purpose of a possible match with a child

We hope you find this information useful, and we look
forward to working with you.

Adoption Register Contact Details

Adoption Register for England Tel: 0870 750 2173

Fax: 0870 750 2174

Unit 4, Pavilion Business Park Adopters’ Helpline: 0870 750 2176
Royds Halt Road, Worltley E-mail: mail@adoptionregister.org.uk
LEEDS LS12 6A) Websile: www.adoptionregister.org,uk



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



Adoption and Children Act 2002 (“ACA”)

As you are probably already aware, the main provisions of the
ACA came into force on 30 December 2005.

These provisions represent probably the biggest changes to
child care law since the Children Act 1989 and have huge
implications for social work and legal practice.

The purpose of this briefing is simply to headline the major
changes.

The ACA, although long in gestation, followed the Prime
Minister's Office own review of adoption law and practice in
2000. The ACA’s stated primary objectives are to update
adoption law and to increase the number of looked after
children who are placed for adoption; only time will tell whether
the new provisions will deliver the latter goal.

BRIEF SUMMARY OF MAIN PROVISIONS

a) Abolition of freeing orders — replacement with placement orders
(PO}

» freeing applications issued before 30/12/05 will continue under the
existing court procedures/rules

Y

from 30/12/05, a child will not be able to be placed for adoption
unless authorised by a PO or parental consent

» LAs will have to apply for PO in care proceedings if the Agency
has decided that the child should be placed for adoption

» if the parents do not consent to a PO, their consent will have to be

dispensed with; the criteria for dispensation will be the welfare of
the child

AODENDUM S

Page 29



v

the birth parents’ ‘Parental Responsibility’ (PR) will not be
extinguished by a PO

when placed with prospective adopters, the LA will share PR with
themn and the birth parents ; the LA will determine the extent to
which the other PR holders exercise their PR.

A ¥4

A7

subsequent to a PO, birth parents will stilt be able to apply for
leave to oppose an adoption order; to be granted leave, they will
have to show that that there has been a “change in circumstances”
since the PO was made.

v

a LA will be able to apply to revoke a PO if the plan for the child
changes; parents (with PR) will be able to apply to revoke a PO if
the child is not placed for adoption and there has been a change
in circumstances since the PO was made.

if a PO is revoked, a care order is revived if it was in force before
the PO was made.

A4

b) Parental consent to placement for adoption

- birth parents can relinquish a child for adoption by giving formal
consent under s19 ACA: this has to be witnessed by a CAFCASS
officer.

- the giving of consent gives the LA PR; when the child is placed for
adoption, the prospective adopters will also share PR. The LA will
determine the extent to which the other PR holders exercise their
PR.

- once the prospective adopters apply for an adoption order, if the
birth parents have not withdrawn their s19 consent, they will not be
able to oppose the adoption order without the court’s leave; they
will have to demonstrate a “change in circumstances.”

c) Adoption applications — birth parents will have the right to be
given notice of the date and place of the adoption final hearing and
will be able to attend to be heard on the question of whether an
order should be made (unless they have applied unsuccessfully for
leave to oppose the adoption).

Sarah Johal/val Hates 2
Social services (Adoption)
Feb 2006

Page 30



Application cannot be made to court until children been in piacement for
10 weeks. For children placed under $S19 consent child can be returned
within 14 days if application not lodged.

Locally, Judge Hunt has indicated that adoption hearings will be dealt
with in 2 stages, with the prospective adopters (and child, where
appropriate) excused from the first stage.

d) s26 contact orders

> once a child placed for adoption, the LA has no duty to promote
contact under CA

A7

the LA, the child, any parent, legal guardian or any relative can
apply for contact with a child under s26 ACA, during or after PO
proceedings.

» Adoptive parents may be given leave to apply for a variation in any
contact order made. They cannot apply as of right.

the court must consider whether to make a s26 contact order when
deciding whether to make a PO.

v

» 526 orders will not be enforceable once an adoption order made

A7

s8 contact orders will have to be applied for, as at present, in
relation to post-adoption contact.

f} Harmonisation of adoption and children law

» the welfare of the child becomes the paramount consideration in
adoption decisions made by the Court and adoption agencies

» new welfare checklist, delay and no order principles apply

g) Unmarried couples (including same sex couples) will be able to
adopt jointly provided they are deemed to be in an “enduring family
relationship”

Sarah Johal/\Val Hales 3
Social services (Adoption)
Feb 2006

Page 31



i) New Panel Forms - the Form E and matching report have
been replaced by the “Child’s Permanence Report” and the
“Adoption Placement Report” (APR). The APR is completed
by the social worker and there is provision for adopters to
comment on the form regarding information received, any
issues outstanding and future Adoption Support.

i) An Adoption Placement will be formally reviewed by an
Independent Reviewing Officer — 4 weeks, 3 months and
thereafter 6 monthly. The Review will discuss
progress/court application/Adoption Support.

ACA PROVISIONS ALREADY IN FORCE

The following provisions of the ACA are already in force:

% 31/10/03 — Adoption Support Regs — legal duty for LA 1o
assess child and adoptive family's need for adoption support
before matching Panel and on request at any time during
child’s minority; discretion to provide support.

> since 30/4/04 — independent review mechanism (run by
BAAF) of agency proposals not to approve or to terminate
approval

FURTHER INFORMATION:

Please go the BAAF website for useful information about the ACA —
www.baaf.org.uk

Sarah Johal/Val Hales 4
Social services (Adaption}
Fen 7006

Page 32



ADDEADUW, U

CONSIDERING AND DECIDING WHETHER A CHILD SHOULD BE PLACED FOR ADOPTION

Setting up the child’s case record
AAR 12

1 {

Providing counselling and

Providing counselling and . . o
. ) " information, and ascertaining the
information, and ascertaining the

ish d feelin f the child’s
wishes and feelings of the child wishes and teelings o

parent or guardian and others

AAR 13
AAR 14
Requirement to obtain Requirement to obtain information
information about the child about the child's family
AAR 15 and Parts 1 & 2 Schedule 1 AAR 16 and Parts 3 & 4 Schedule 1

' '

Preparing the child’s permanence report
AAR 17 and Parts 1 and 3 Schedule 1

{

Adoption panel considers the case, makes

recommendations and gives advice
AAR 18

!

Agency decision maker's role and written notification

of the agency’s decision to the child’s parent or guardian
AAR 19

{

Requesting CAFCASS to appoint an officer of the service

where the child’s parent or guardian is prepared to consent
under 519, or s19 and s20 and provision of information
AAR 20 and Schedule 2

Adoption and Children Act 2002 Guizance Chapter 2

Page 33



PANEL RECOMMENDATIONS AND AGENCY DECISION IN RESPECT OF
PROSPECTIVE ADOPTERS

Panel to consider the case of the
prospective adopter and make
recommendation as toc whether the
prospective adopter is suitable to
adopt a child
AAR 26.1

rh

Panel must consider and take into
account al! the information and
reports passed to it in accordance
with AAR 25
AAR 26.2

5

The adoption panel may give
advice about the number of
children the prospective adopter
may be suitable to adopt, their age
range, sex, likely needs and
background
AAR 26.3

-

Panel may request the agency to
abtain any other relevant information
that the panel considers necessary
and may obtain legal advice in
relation to the case
AAR 26.2

5

Panet to invite prospective
adopters to attend a meeting
of the panel
AAR 26.4

Agency must decide whether the
prospective adopter is suitable
to adopt a child
AAR 27.1

¥

Where the agency considers that
the prospective adopter is suitable
to adopt it must notify himin
writing of its decision
AAR 27.3

i

No panel member shall take part
in any decision about whether
the child should be placed for

adoption
AAR 27.2

3

Where agency considers the prospective adopter is not
suitable, it must notify him in writing and advise him that
within 40 days he may submit representations to the
agency or apply for a review by the Independent Review

Panel
AAR27.4

Adoption ana Chiidren Act 2002 Guidance: Chapter 3 19

Page 34



6

MATCHING AND PROPOSING A PLACEMENT

Agency identifies a match and provides prospective
adopter with the child's permanence report
AAR 311

'

Agency to meet with the prospective adopter, discuss
proposed placement, ascertain their views and provide
them with a counselling service
AAR 311

l

Where agency considers proposed placement should
proceed, it is to carry out adoption support assessment,
consider contact arrangements and prepare adoption
placement report
AAR 31.2

;

Agency notifies prospective adopter that proposed
placement is to be referred to adoption panel, provides
them with a copy of the adoption placement report and

invites them to comment on it
AAR 31.3

'

Agency refers proposed placement to the adoption
panel and provides it with the adoption placement
report and the prospective adopter's comments on the
report, together with the child’s permanence report and
the prospective adopter’s report
AAR31.4

Y

Continued on next page

Adoption and Children Act 2002

Page 35

Guidance: Chapter 4



PANEL RECOMMENDATIONS AND AGENCY DECISION ON PROPOSED PLACEMENT

The adoption panel must consider
the proposed placement and make a

recommendation as to whether the ’_-»

child should be placed for adoption
with that particular prospective
adopter
AAR 321

Panel may obtain legal advice as it
considers necessary in relation to
the case
AAR 32.2

5

Panel must have regard to section 1 of
the Act and consider and take into
account all information and reports

passed to it in accordance with
AAR 31
AAR32.2

’ obtain any other relevant information

Panel may request the agency to

which the panel considers necessary
AAR 32.2

Panel must consider and, where panel recommends that the child should be placed
with the particular prospective adopters, may give advice about the following:
® The local authority’s proposals for the provision of adoption support services for the

adoptive family

@ The arrangements the agency proposes to make for allowing any person contact

with the child

& Whether the parental responsibility of any parent or guardian or the prospective
adopter should be restricted and if so the extent of any such restriction

AAR 32.3

¥

The agency must take into account the
recommendation of the adoption panel

in coming to a decision about whether the

child should be placed for adoption with
the prospective adopter
AAR 33.1

-

No member of the adoption panel
shall take part in any decision about
whether the child should be placed

for adoption with the particular
prospective adopter
AAR 33,2

+

As soon as possibie after making its decision, the agency must notify in writing the
prospective adopter and the parent or guardian

AAR 33.3

Adoption and Children Act 2002

Page 36

Guidance: Chapter 4

7



ADDENDUM &

S e

Pitid
LEEDS

CITY COUNCIL

Fostering and Adoption Services

Adopters Guide

Information for Leeds Adopters
on the Matching and Placement Process

Page 37



INTRODUCTION

This guide is designed to provide information for Leeds Social Services approved
adopters on the Matching and Placement planning process. The following information
outlines the ‘journey’ from your approval as adopters at a Leeds Adoption Panel, through
the Matching and Placement process to achieving an Adoption Order. Each section
describes key features of each part of the process.

The guide is in four main sections:

1 Adoption Panel and your Approval
2 The Matching Process

3 Placement Planning

4 Placement to Adoption Hearing

You may already be familiar with some of this information via your preparation / assessment
and discussion with your iink worker. However, continued discussion and advice throughout the
process with your link worker is very important — this guide provides information about typical
stages of the process but aspects of these, including timescales, may differ depending on your
particular match and placement.

1. ADOPTION PANEL / YOUR APPROVAL

The recommendation in your Form F (Home Study) report will have included details of the age
range of child{ren) and number of children you and the agency agree you wish to adopt. You
should have a copy of the Form F report via your link worker for your reference.

The Form F should now become available for consideration by social workers who seek
adopters for the children they are responsible for. The waiting time for adopters before reaching
discussion or: possible matches can vary, mainly due to the availability of the age and number
of the children you are approved for. Your link worker will keep you advised on this. Availabliity
of your Form F report is coordinated via the Adoption Section and your link worker is kept
informed of any interest by social workers in your details.

Other issues at this stage to remember are:
* Adoption feave — it is advisable that you have looked into / pianned your adoption leave.
A leaflet PL 515 "Adoptive Parents / rights to leave and pay’ should already have been made

available to you. If not, please ask your link worker for a copy.

" Adoption Register — we will forward details of your approval ta the National Register. These
details become active some months after approval to aliow agency matching to be achieved.

* Einancial Assessment - you should have had a financial assessment of your circumstances
completed during your assessment. This will be used during the next stage of the process
once a match is agreed io assess if you are eligible for an adoption allowance.

* Your Link Worker — your link worker will be working with you throughouit the process and
is available for advice.. Alf the key considerations and decisions you will make
regarding your adoption commitment will involve your linkworker, so do make use of their
guidance and support

Page 38



2. THE MATCHING PROCESS

A number of key elements make up this part of the process and have to be agreed and
achieved before a match with a child(ren) is agreed at Adoption Panel. A typical Matching
process should work through 3 stages:

Stage 1

a)

b}

d)

Your Form F Report is made available to Social Workers responsible for available children
within your approval, as outlined in Section 1 above.

Sogial Workers will respond to the Adoption Section, indicating an initial interest in your
details. Your link worker wilt be informed of this interest, and initial discussion between
the Social Worker and your link worker can then take place.

Your link worker will contact you and discuss with you general details of the child(ren)

concerned. If you wish to find out more, this may involve a visit from your link worker to
discuss the child’s information in more detai,

If this meeting is positive and you and your link worker agree to pursue this further, there
will need to be a meeting arranged between yourself, the social worker and your link
worker.

Stage 2

a)

b)

A meeting with the child’s Social Worker and your link worker. This meeting is designed to
explore the suitability of the possible match, allowing an opportunity for you to discuss

the child in detail. At this stage you wiil have access to a range of information on the child,
mainly via a Form £ report. A Form E is the report that is presented to Adoption Panel
recommending adoption for the child concerned.

Guidance on the Form E report:

The Form E contains a range of information on a child, including Health: Education;
Birth Family History and Placement Needs for Adoption. Also inciuded is a Child's
Profie which will include information on the child’s Personality; Behaviour; Abilities.

The Form E is central to your considerations of a possible match and should be discussed
in conjunction with your link worker. In addition to the Form E. there may be other reports /
information available eg. from current caring Foster Carer; Psychologist: Education;
Medical.

If you wish to seek further advice or detail regarding the Form E report or additional
Reports /information, please discuss this with the social worker and your link worker.
We can arrange access to our Medical Advisor on health issues, or nursery / school
on education issues, for exampie.

Agreeing 1o a proposed Match Having carefully locked at the child's details and discussed
this in the meeting with the social worker and your link worker. you may all agree to this
as a suitable match. The Social Worker and your link warker will then need to confirm

this with their respective managers. At this stage, it should be possible to make available
to you any child’s photographs / video etc if they have not been already.

Page 39



Stage 3

a)  Matching Report. A Matching Report is required by Adoption Pane! to formally agree any
propesed match. This will be campleted by your link worker and the child’s social worker
and details the suitabilty of the praposed match. Your link worker will discuss the report
with you before it is forwarded for Panel consideration. The report will also detail any
reguirements that have been agreed for post placement support via an adoption support
assessment.

b)  Approving the Match at Adoption Panel. The matching report is presented to a Panel by
your link worker and the child's social worker. They will discuss the range of suitability
issues and why the proposed match is considered positive and appropriate. The
Panel recommendation to approve a match goes to the Agency Decision Maker. This
can take a few days for a formal decision to be made.

Some Questions and Answers about Matching:
How many Form E's can i expect to be made available to consider?

Itis unlikely that you will be expected to consider more than 3 Form E’s at any one time. This
wilt also depend on the availablity of children suitable for your approval. We normally ask you
to consider one set of chiid's details at a time.

What if | don't want to pursue a match?

Issues of unsuitability regarding any match will be discussed at the earliest stage of the
process. You should discuss any concerns with your link worker. We will not pursue a proposed
match unless everyone, most importantly yourselves. is happy to proceed. If you do not
proceed, we will then consider other available children with you.

What happens if the Social Worker does not want to pursue a match?

If the social worker decides after meeting you that he/she does not want to proceed. you will be
informed at the earliest opporiunity. The Social Worker will also discuss this with your link
worker.Very occasionally, a Social Worker will meet 2 to 3 adopters at the same time in order to
make the right choice. If this is the case, you will be informed at the outset.

What happens if Adoption Panel are not happy with a proposed match?

The matching report should be a considered proposal, detailing all suitabilty issues. However, if
Panel are unable to recommend, the reasons why will be made available via you link worker
and discussed with you. Some matches can be compiex and require further clarification by
Panel before proceeding.

What happens if | / we are not successfully matched ?

if you have not had the opportunity to consider suitable matches within 3 months of your
approval, it may be that you wish to consider your details being made available via the National
Adoption Register or via the Regional Consortium of Adoption Agencies. There may be a range
of reasons why no suitable match has arisen — your link worker will be in regular contact to
discuss any issues with you. After a certain period of time, it may be appropriate to review your
approval to assist with matching possibilites but the timescale before this is proposed needs to
be discussed with your link worker,

Page 40



If I need more information, what should | do?

If you are unsure about a child's informaticn, or require clarification an any information given to
you, please discuss this with your link werker. This is particularly important if you need guidance
on a child's health / development prognosis for example — we can arrange for you to discuss
this with a Medical Acvisor. If in doubt, you should request more information - we will do our
utmost to help you.

3. PLACEMENT PLANNING

Once the proposed Match has been agreed by the Agency decision maker, the process moves
to planning the child's placement with you. You may have had some preliminary discussion with
your link worker about placement planning and already had some discussion with the child's
social worker and current foster carer, At this stage however, the child, if old encugh, will not
have been made aware of the match — this is usually best left until all the placement planning
arrangements have been agreed.

The Placement Planning process should typically include the following steps:

a) Arranging the Placement Planning Meeting. Foliowing the agreed match from the
Agency decision maker, your link warker will discuss with you, the child’s soctal worker and
the foster carer for the child, pessible dates / times for a Planning Meeting. This is usually
arrangec as soon as is convenient to all parties to avoid unnecessary delay.

b} The Placement Planning Meeting. This meeting needs to discuss and agree a range of
matters, including a provisional start of ptacement date — when the chitd should be placed
with you. The meeting often takes place at the foster carers home, with the first opportunity
for you to meet the child taking place at or directly after this meeting. This will depend
on the child’s age and you will have discussed this before the meeting with your link worker,

lnvolved in the Planning Meeting will be:

* the prospective adopters * your iink worker (who normally acts as chair for the meeting)

* the child’s social worker * the child's foster carer(s). Additionally, there may be have been
agreement for others to be involved in the meeting eg a Social Work Manager. If so, this
shouid have been discussed with you beforehand.

The meeting normally follows a standardised format, and needs to record agreements and
decisions including:

" Pertod of Introductions to the child for the adopters * provisional start of placement date
" any contact issues for the child * any other issues for the child that need addressing
* financial support, including adopters eligibitity for adoption allowance * adoption support

You will sign and in due course receive, a written copy of the Placement Planning Agreement.
At the meeting however, you will need to record and retain the details of the Intreduction period
- Introductions can often start directly atter the meeting.

Following this meeting, we are also able to confirm for your employer. adoption placement

details for adoption leave purposes. Your link worker will arrange for a form to be signed and
returned to you.

Page 41



c) Introductions

The timescale needed for introducing yeu to the child and the nature and tyne of
introductions will have been discussed and agreed at the Placement Planning Meeting.

There are no hard and fast ‘procedures’ about introductions, rather, goed practice which
recognises a range of different factors, including: child's age; circumstances of foster carer;
availability of all parties etc. Each introduction pian will be agreed to suit the needs of the child
and the needs of the ptacement.

However, there is a fairly common approach to introductions which incorporate
the following key factors:

* At the start of the introduction period, you will build up contact by visiting the child
at the foster carers home, spending increasingly longer pariods with the child This period
is also very important in building a relationship with the child's foster carer(s).

* Introductions will normally increase in frequency and time spent with the child. at the foster
carers and away from the carer as the process continues.

* The infroduction period will include opportunities for all parties to discuss progress. Often
there will have been a mid — period infroductions ‘review’ arranged at the planning meeting
to allow for this.

* The fatter part of the introduction period, particularly for older children, provides
opportunites for a child spending fonger periods with you, including visiting your home.

* The period of infroductions should work towards the agreed provisional placement start
date as agreed at the placement planning meeting. This can change however, if all parties
agree — eg. moving start of placement forward if the process fs going very well and this is
in the child's best interests. If there are difficuities however, then there will need to be a
meeting involving all parties tc look at the issues and review progress.

* If the process is going well, 2 — 3 weeks of introductions for most childrer is normally
sufficient to achieve an agreed start of placement with you

* The introductions period should be characterised by all parties being in reqular contact.
Your contact with your link worker is very important — if you have any issues you need to
discuss, you need to let your link worker know as soon as possible. Open communication
assists with successiul introductions.

* Finally. the introductions period can certainly be quite intensive and you wilf nead fo be
realistic about the practicalities of achieving successful introductions. This should have
been discussed at the planning meeting to allow for realistic expectations about your
availability and how the introductions are structured.

4 PLACEMENT TOWARDS ADOPTION ORDER

Having achieved the child's placement with you. we still need to work together towards ensuring
progress towards the Adoption Hearing where you finally legally adopt

This period includes placement visiting and meeting requirements which will inctude:

* 2 ‘Post Placement’ Meeting, held at your home, 28 days after the start of placement.
This meeting will involve: adopters, the child's social worker, your link worker The meeting
Is normally chaired by your link worker, but can scmetimes be chaired by a social work Team
Manager. The meeting is held to review the initial stages of the placement and confirm

progress.

L]

Page 42



" Visits from the child’s Social Worker. The child's soctal worker is expected to visit
you and the child on & regular basis. Visiting frequency will normally have been discussed at
the placement ptanning meeeting but will again be discussed and agreed at this meeting.

* Visits from you link worker. These will be agreed to take piace on a reguler basis to ensure
guidance and support for you. You may find that on occasions, your link werker and the
social werker may arrange to visit you together.

* A Child Care Review. This is 2 meeting which is normally held up to six months into the
placement and involves the social worker, you, the child {it age appropriate), your fink worker
and is chaired by an independent reviewing officer. This meeting will review the progress
of the placement and aliow everybody opportunities to make & contribution.

Timescaies and Steps towards the Adoption Hearing

The above visiting and meeting requirements can continue for some menths before you can
formally apply for an Adopticn Hearing. Agreeing to apply for the Adoption Hearing needs to
take place between the Department and you and follows a period of time which allows sufficient
confirmation of progress.

For very young chifdren, including babies, this will not usually take iong to achieve, so some
adopters will find they can apply for a Hearing earlier in the process. Older children at / above
schoal age may require a longer perfod to confirm progress. The timescales involved will be
assessed and discussed with you throughout this period. The agreement to apply for the
Hearing will take place at an appropriate meeting. Hearing application court fees can be
reimbursed by the Depariment — for details, please discuss with vour link worker.

The application for the Hearing is made by you and you will be informed of a date by the Court.
Application to Adoption Hearing timescales can vary, often due lo available Court time. We are
experiencing improvemenis however in waiting times for Hearings — your link worker will be able
to give you more information and guidance on this at the time.

The Adoption Hearing will consider a report, prepared by the social worker, confirming the
progress of the placement and supporting your application tc adopt.

Adoption Hearings normally take place at Leeds Magistrates Court and are arranged to be
refaxed, informal and family friendly. The Court wants to provide an appropriate setting for the
celebration of your legal adoption, involving you, your child and the staff who have workad with
you throughout the process.

Useful Contact Details -

Leeds City Council / Department of Social Services il
Adoption and Fostering, Merrion House, Merrion Centre, CITY COUNCIL
Leeds LS2 8QB

email: ss.fostering.and.adoption@leeds.gov.uk

Adoption Section: 0113 2474747

Team Managers / Adoption and Permanency 0113 2474747 f&\

Resource Manager / Children 0113 2243582 %/

Adoption Support Team 0113 2243756

SW/Jan 35

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



ADBENDM

Special Guardianship Orders

Amendment to the Children Act
1989.

What is a Special Guardianship
Order?

A Special Guardianship order appoints one or
more people to be a child's Special Guardian.

A Special Guardian is granted ‘Parental
Responsibility’ for the child. The birth parent’s legal
link to the child remalins but their parental
responsibility is limited as outlined below.

Special Guardians {SGs) are therefore
responsible for all aspects of caring for the child and
are able to make aimost all of the major decisions
about their upbringing - e.g. Where the child lives or
goes to school, authorising medical treatment.

« There are exceptions to the decisions they
can make, for instance an SG cannot change
the child’s surname or take them out of the
country for longer than 3 months without the
leave of the court or the consent of the
parents. The birth parents also retain the
right to consent or not consent to the child
being adopted.

*

There is a range of help and support
available for Special Guardians, including
financial support.

Who Can Apply?

Any guardian of the child

Anyonhe with whom the child has fived for 3 out of the last
5 years

Anyone who holds a Residence Order

A local authority foster carer with whom the child has
lived for one year unless the department supperis the
application prior 10 a year

Anyone who has the consent of all those with PR

= Any person, including the child, who has the leave of the

court to apply
Applicanis must be aged 18 or aver

Page 45




Applications

« Non-Agency applications:
these relate to applications where the LA

have had no involvement in placing the child.

+ Agency applications:
Where a child is looked after by the LA or
an application is supported by the LA
during proceedings.

Non Agency Applications

» Saocial workers from the area will
undertake these assessments.

= The completion of a Schedule 21 report
will be required.

+ All non-agency applicants are entitled to
advice and assistance from the
department. However they will not be
entitled to a support package, including
financial support.

Agency Applications

- Where children are settled in their
placement with foster carers or FNCs the
department encourages them to look at
options for permanency such as Adoption,

Residence Order or Special Guardianship.

+ The Department has now agreed to
financially support carers for any of the
above orders on an equal basis.

Agency Application Process

- Two gateways:

—Where the child is in proceedings the
social worker undertakes the court
report.

—Where a child is placed with foster
carers or FNCs a fostering and adoption
officer will prepare the reportin
conjunction with the child’s social
worker.

Page 46



Procedures for Agency
Applications

» Referral during care proceedings:

- if a report is requested by the court the Team
Manager Children should contact Team
Manager Adoption and Permanence with
hasic details.

— Information and guidance will then be sent to

the TMC for allocation to the child’s social
worker,

Referral following a review:

— aformal referral for a SGO can only be made
foliowing a recommendation made at a LAG
review.

- the CSM must agree the financial support
prior to any assessment taking place. A notice
of the proposal for financial support should be
sent to the carer.

— The prospective Special Guardian needs to
formaily notify the Team manager Adoption
and Permanency of their intention,

Social Work Tasks

+ To ceunsel, advise and ascerain views of
applicants, birth parents and children regarding
the implications of SGOs.

+ To complete the Schedule 21 court report:

— Arrange CRB and LA checks.

— Undertake 3 references — not more than one
family member,

— Arrange health checks.

— To complete an assessment of support needs
and include a summary of this in the repor! for
court,

Support for Special Guardians

Using Appendix 3 in the pracecures for SGQOs the scciai
worker should complete an assessment of the
prospective Special Guardian's needs for support
Services.
under Special Guardianship Regulations the foliowing
prescribed services should be availabie. This includes:

telephone helptine

therapeutic services

fraining

respite care

medialion

financial support

groups

support far comtact

Page 47




Financial Support

For angoing financial support the child needs to fit one
of the eiigiblity criteria as set out in the Decision
Sheets for Ongoing Payments.

Once agreed carers will continue to get paid at their
current rate including holiday, birthday and
Christmas allowances. These will not be means
tested. The allowance will be paid minus child
benefit and child tax credit.

If the carer is getting an enhancement or a fee this will
continue.

Payments will continue until the child reaches 18 or
leaves home before this.

Entitlement to Leaving Care
Services

» Children who were looked after
immediately before the making of an SGO
qualify for advice and assistance under the
Children (Leaving Care) Act between the
ages of 16 and 20.

All children will be entitled to a request for
leaving care services at the appropriate
age. This will be undertaken by Pathway
Planning.

Ongoing Payments post 18

« For those young people in full time
education or training the carer can
continue to receive financial support until
the course is completed.

Post Order Support

» Requests for support post order will
initially come to the specialist worker for
SGOs via the telephone advice line.

* An assessment of support needs may be
undertaken or the $SG may be sign-posted
to other services where appropriate.

* Issues of financial support can be
considered post order.

Page 48







@ Introduction

Some children in care are looked after by members of their
family (known as family network carers or kinship carers) who
are approved by the Social Services Department as foster

carers.

Other children live with foster carers who are not related but
have lived there for some time and formed a strong

attachment.

Where children are settled in their placements, the Department
encourages carers to apply for a Residence Order.

A Residence Order is an order made by the
-/ M Court that decides who a child or young
person should live with. If a person applies
for and is granted a Residence Order the
order has the effect of granting “parental
responsibility” on them i.e. They can make
day to day decisions about the child as if

they were his or her parent.

et
——
—

Many foster carers and family network carers want to apply for
Residence Orders. There are a number of reasons why:

The responsibility for the child is transferred from the social
worker to the carer, giving them more freedom and making
family life more like “normal” families.

* All the additional duties of fostering a child are removed
e.g. attending review meetings, form filling, regular social
work visits, annual health needs assessments (medicals).

. It gives a message to the child that the carer is committed
to them and wants them to stay in the family long-term

mosmnmﬂmamﬂmﬁm_c
because : ctant to apply for a Residence Order

*  They believe that once the Care

Social Services Department o Order is Q_.mn:m@ma\ the

no longer support them,

They believe they will be financiaity disadvantaged

T o
hey consider it is 3 greater commitment than fostering

Th
his leaflet sets out to explain what carers considering a

Residence Order can
. . expect from :
financial and non-financial mcvvo;ﬁ.:m Department in terms of

@ Why apply for a residence order?

Mmmmwﬂ: shows that the most stable ang
£ wmzw _._Mm__ouhmnmsm:ﬁm for looked after children

' 'ONg-term carers. Where chiid
Mhmﬁ their carers are committed to c%%ﬂux:oé
qoﬂﬂ w% Fm_:g mac_ﬁ:ooa_. they can then put

LS and begin to get on with thejr I
This generally resuyits | et

! n better educatio

health and socig| outcomes for %_.Eﬂmz.:m_\

@ Who can apply for a residence Order?

Fa




&P Types of Financial Support available

There are three types of financial support that the Social
Services Department can provide for carers thinking of applying
for a Residence Order.

1. Assistance with legal costs when someone is
applying to court for a residence order

2. Specific and/for time limited assistance in order to get
a placement up and running.

3. Ongoing financial support to carers on a set-payment
basis.

Financial support will be paid to carers taking out a Residence

Order provided this is in accordance with an agreed plan

(agreed at a formal review) and Sacial Services is supporting

the carers application.

1. Assistance with legal costs when someone is
applying to court for a residence order

Where a carer wishes to apply for a Residence
Order, they will need to identify a solicitor who
can make the application on their behalf. It
may be that some carers will be entitled to
legal aid in arder to fund their application, so
they will not need to pay legal costs.

If carers are not entitled to legal aid, the Social Services
Department will contribute to the legal costs if:

o  The child in question is subject to a Care Order

. The application for a Residence Order is part of the Care
Plan agreed at a Review.

@D Cases where a child is not subject to a
Care Order

There are some circumstances where a child is
placed with a relative as an alternative to care
proceedings and the child is not subject to a
care order. Carers in such circumstances may
wish to apply for a Residence Order to stabilise
the child’s situation. In these circumstances
Social Services will pay the legal costs provided:

e The carer has been refused legal aid to fund their

application

. There would otherwise be clear grounds for a Care Order

e  The relative’s application is supported by the Department

and is part of an agreed plan made at a Child Protection /
Child and Family Support / Looked After Child Review
meeting.

Page 51




2. Specific and/or time limited assistance in order to
get a placement up and running.

This is dependent on circumstances of the carer and what they
need to make a Residence Order viable. This type of financial
assistance is unlikely to last more than a few weeks as ongoing
costs will be met from the weekly payment (see below)

3. Ongoing financial support to carers on a set-
payment basis.

Where carers are applying for a Residence Order as an
alternative to a child staying on a Care Order, Social Services
has made a commitment that carers should not be financially
worse off by obtaining a Residence Order.

@P» Example

The Social Services Department will pay Residence Order
carers a weekly amount that means they receive the same as
if they had continued fostering. This is how it works:

In each circumstance the rate paid to residence order carers
will be the Weekly Boarding Out rate minus the Child Benefit
amount. This is because ance a Residence Order is made,
carers are entitled to claim Child Benefit themselves.

For an 11 year old child the weekly boarding out rate for
fostering is £129.30 (2005/6 rate)

Once a Residence Order is made, the carer is entitled to
receive child benefit for this child ( £17.00 per week if child is
only or oldest child in the family, £11.40 if there are older
children)

The weekly payment to the carer would therefore be ( 129.30
~-11.40 = 117.90)

This payment is to help with the day-to-day costs of feeding,
clothing and entertaining a child of that age.

The current weekly Boarding Out rates are set out below:
These are the rates payable at April 2005 and will increase
with inflation on a yearly basis:

Age of Child Weekly Boarding Out
rate

0-4 £ 91.20

5-10 £103.85

11-12 £129.30

13-15 £129.30

16+ £163.40

In addition to the weekly payment, residence order carers will
also be paid, automatically, allowances for Birthday , Christmas
and Summer Holidays. The rates are:

Birthday — additional 1 weeks payment

Christmas — additional 1 weeks payment

Summer Holiday - additional 2 weeks payment

O,

rage oz




For the 11 year old child above, whose
birthday was in March, and where there is at
least one older child in the family the carer
would receive a weekly payment of £117.90
from Social Services.

In addition the carer would be paid the
following grant payments each year:

March £ 129.30 birthday grant

July £ 258.60 summer holiday grant
December £ 129.30 Christmas grant

Total = £ 517.20 per year in additional grants.

Grants are paid automatically — carers will not have to claim
them.

@ Review of Payments -

Ongoing payments to carers with Residence Orders will be
reviewed annually. This review will check that circumstances
remain the same.

4P Fee Paid Carers

Social services will ensure that fee paid carers receive similar
financial arrangements once a residence order is taken.
Carers should ask the Social worker for details.

@ Payments after age 16.

A Residence Order lasts until a child’s 16" birthday. Payments
will normatly cease when the child reaches the age of 16 or if
the order is discharged. However the Department has agreed
to financially support carers in certain circumstances, for
example if a young person is still in full time education at school
or college,

The Social Services Department can make discretionary
payments to carers up to the young person’s 18" birthday. Such
arrangements will be approved on a case-by-case basis, taking
into account the young persons and their carers particular
circumstances.

@P Impact of Residence Order on other
benefits

Page 53

Carers receiving Residence QOrder payments will still be entitied
to apply for Pension Credit, Working Tax Credit and Child Tax
Credit.

@P Children with additional needs

Where a carer is looking after a child with

additional needs because of a disability or

chronic health condition, they will be

entitied to claim Disability Living Allowance

and/or Mobility allowance in the same way /
as any parent. This will not affect the r
weekly allowance paid to the carer by the

Social Services Department.




¢ Non-financial assistance and support

Social Services acknowledges that it is a big step for a carer to
take out a residence order, and that continued socia! services
help and support may be needed..

The social worker, in partnership with the
carers and the child, will identify whether there
is a need for continued social work support. If
so, a Child and Family Support Plan may be
agreed on. This could, for example, help with
ongoing contact arrangements.

If future contact with birth parents is not straight forward an
agreement could be made that the social worker will stay
involved to help with this

4P Next Steps .
1f, having read this ieaflet you are interested in
applying for a Residence Order, you should:

Talk to the social worker responsible for the
chiidren) concerned.

A discussion then needs to take place at the next Looked After
Child Review and the agreed plan to apply for a Residence
Order included in the child’s Care Plan.

The social worker will then advise you of the next steps.

Finally, it is a big step to take on the care of someone else’s
child. If you decide to do this, the Social Services Department
accepts that we have a role to play in supporting you in making
a long-term commitment to the child or children in question.
We take our responsibility to you very seriously.

If you feel at any point now or in the future that you are not
@.mﬁ_:@ the support you need, please get in touch with us,
either through your social worker or their Team Manager.

If you want to complain about a poor service contact
Complaints Section, details below:

Complaints Manager,
Social Service Department,
110 Merrion Centre,

Leeds LS2 8QB

Page 54

Tel: (0113) 2478627

Fax: (0113) 2477228




Page 55




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



Agenda ltem 9

Originator:  Kate Arscott

Tel: 247 4189

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)
Date: 7 September 2006

Subject: Adoption in Leeds — Inquiry Session Two

Electoral Wards Affected: Specific Implications For:

Ethnic minorities

Women

Disabled people

Narrowing the Gap

1.0 Introduction

1.1 At the board’s first meeting in June, members agreed to carry out an inquiry into
adoption in Leeds as one of their major pieces of work this year.

1.2 The board appointed a small working group to draft terms of reference for the inquiry
which were agreed at the board’s July meeting.

1.3 The first and second formal sessions of the inquiry were scheduled for this meeting.
The second session focuses on providing specific information about the adoption
service in Leeds. Attached at Appendix 1 is a report which outlines the information
requested from the Social Services department for this session

1.4 In addition, background information on the work of the regional consortium is provided
at Appendix 2.

1.5 Social Services staff involved in adoption and post adoption support will be at the
meeting to present the information and respond to members’ questions and comments.
In addition, the regional consortium’s administrator will be in attendance to discuss the
role it plays in the adoption process.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 The board is requested to consider the issues raised by the second session of this
inquiry.

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



Originator:
Rodger Walker
Tel:0113 2243592

Report of the Chief Social Services Officer
Report to Scrutiny Board

Date: 7/9/06 Session two

Subject: Inquiry into Adoption Services in Leeds

Electoral Wards Affected: Specific Implications For:

Ethnic minorities

Women

Disabled people

Narrowing the Gap

Executive Summary

1. This report is to the Scrutiny Board group which is looking into adoption services in Leeds
and provides information for session two of the group which is meeting on 7" September
as addressed in the terms of reference (paragraph 5.2) of the Scrutiny Board inquiry.

2. Background

2.1 The adoption services in Leeds are provided by the Social Services and National
Children’s Homes (NCH) and Barnardo’s . Only Social Services are legally able to
provide the full range of services to adopters and children. NCH and Barnardo’s provide
services to adopters by assessing them and supporting them. They then sell the adoptive
placements to Social Services anywhere in the country. Private agencies are not allowed
under current law.

2.2 The adoption services fit within the Children’s strategy for Leeds and conform to the
“Every Child Matters” agenda and the Adoption Implementation Plan is attached as an
addendum. (addendum 1)

3. Purpose Of This Report

The purpose of this report is to provide information to the Scrutiny Board inquiry on
adoption on 7™ September 2006 (session 2)

Page 59



Main Issues

4. Profile of prospective adopters and adoptees in Leeds

4.1 The Social Services registers a varying number of adopters each year and equally
accepts a varying number of children for adoption. The historical record is attached as an
addendum. There has been a decrease in the number of people being approved as adopters
in recent years but the numbers are now increasing again. (addendum 2).

4.2 There has been a consequent decline in the number of adoptions (78 in 2003/4, 81 in
04/05 and 53 in 05/06). In this current year (06/07) so far 13 children have been adopted. A
new factor is the new Guardianship Orders (which is explained in addendum 6 to the
previous report for session one), of which there were two last year but seven so far this year.
DfES has anticipated this by announcing that they will assess performance of Social
Services Departments in this area by adding the number of adoptions to the number of
special guardianship orders. By this standard we are on course for a significant improvement
in our performance.

4.3 For information an anonymised list of approved adopters waiting for a match and a
similar list of children are attached as addenda. (addendum 3 and addendum 4)

5. The funding of the adoption service

The budget for this financial year is attached as an addendum (addendum 5) and is hopefully
self explanatory. The inter agency budget is set aside to buy placements from other
agencies, usually the voluntary agencies mentioned above.

The need to pay independent Chairs for the adoption panels has required us to increase the
budget for the panels.

6. Underlying reasons for current performance and measures being taken to improve.

There are a number of reasons why the number of adoptions has reduced in the last two
years:

o The effect of decisions taken at one point in time on policy or practice take a year or
two to be felt because of the length of time between people registering an interest as
an adopter and being approved and matched with a child. The current situation has
probably arisen from a decision taken two years ago to prioiritise long term fostering
applications, the lack of which was causing a bottleneck in the short term fostering
placements.

At that time the teams on the section did both fostering and adoption and prioritizing in
one part of the work would cause a drop in figures in another. | have since
restructured the section into fostering teams and adoption teams so that this cannot
happen again.

e The types of children needing adoption have changed so that more children with
complex needs, in terms of behaviour , age and cultural heritage (particularly mixed

Page 60



heritage children) are needing adoption but it takes longer to find, assess and match
them with adopters. The adoptive parents also wait longer (up to two years) before
applying for adoption orders because they want to be sure that their relationship with
the child has stabilized and any major problems have been sorted out and that they
can cope in the future.

e A shortage of fieldworkers two years ago did mean that adoption was not prioritized
and led to considerable delay in report writing and responding to potential matches.
This situation has now improved.

e The introduction of the requirement to give adoptive applicants the opportunity to
attend their adoption panel has slowed down the panel approval process and a third
adoption panel is needed but we have not yet been able to achieve this because of
the need to have a third medical adviser. Negotiations with the Health Authority to
resolve this are under way.

e Several inspection reports have commented that the section is understaffed for the
size of its task. The opportunity of a central government ring fenced grant was taken
to create an adoption support team and to create two extra mainstream posts last
year. | it is expected that the effect of this will not be felt till later this year as it has
taken considerable time to fill these posts.

We have now addressed the causes of the reduction in the number of approvals and
consequent adoptions and the numbers of approved adopters are now rising again.

7. The work of the regional consortium

This has been addressed in the previous session and written information supplied with the
report for that session. Our representative on that consortium will be attending this session
and can answer any queries.

Membership of the consortium has given us access to a wider range of potential placements
for adoption.

8. The work of the post adoption support service

This department has led in this area of work and we have had a specialist post for it for some
years. The ring fenced grant three years ago allowed us to create a team of workers to
develop this work. Information on the service is attached as an addendum (addendum 8) and
the team manager of this team will attend this session.

It is planned that this new service will enable us to:

e provide support to adopters now experiencing difficulties with children they may have
adopted some years ago. It is now recognized that adopting children who are no
longer babies presents extra challenges to parents and that some will need dedicated
support. This includes the other children of adopters and we offer support to them as
well.

Page 61



e The awareness that we can offer support at any time in the future will encourage
some people to consider adopting older children and children who may present some
challenges.

e Give advice and support to other professionals who may be supporting adopted
children and their parents in difficulty.

We hope this will increase the number of children adopted in the long term, especially those
hitherto considered unadoptable. This will not produce a large number of adoptions but will
be a significant improvement of service to children who might otherwise grow up in care.
The three year plan for this service is attached as an addendum (addendum 9).

9. Recommendation

Members of the Scrutiny Board Inquiry into adoption are asked to note the information
presented in this report and its appendices to the second session of 7" September 2006.

Page 62



£9 abed

ADDENDUM 1

CITY COUNCIL

Leeds Social Services

Adoption Implementation Plan 2006-2007

Author: Sarah Johal/Val Hales
Date: 1 April 2006
Date Agreed: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

Review Date: September 2006



¥9 ebed

Adoption Implementation Plan:

Introduction:

The Government's modernisation agenda has imposed stringent requirements upon local authorities regarding the way its services are
planned, provided and monitored. Planning is the cornerstone of the performance management framework and a key process in ensuring we
effectively meet the needs of our service users and provide high quality services. Social Services Planning Framework seeks to focus the work
of the Department through the development of two plans:

e Level | — Strategic Plan;

e Level Il — Implementation Plan.

The Implementation Plan:

Planning is often criticised for being distant from ‘frontline reality’. The Implementation Plan is designed to be an ‘active document’ that details
local actions for the achievement of key priorities. It underpins the Strategic Plans supporting the achievement of the Departments ‘Shared
Purpose’ and Council Plan. The ‘Implementation Plan’ is a combination of Strategic and Local Service Priorities. Strategic priorities are the
tasks that have been fed into the Implementation Plan from the Strategic Plan. Service Priorities are those which are local to each individual
Service Area fed into the Implementation Plan and based upon: consultation; research; identified development opportunities undertaken by
individual teams.



G9 abed

Area Analysis:

Services Provided:

The Adoption Service provides a recruitment , assessment, registration , support (Including post adoption ),matching and training service to
adopters and people who have been adopted.

It operates two adoption panels and a third is being considered.
It provides a home assessment service for people wising to adopt from abroad. A fee is charged for this service.

The section works in co-operation with the Family Placement service to provide adoptive placements for children with disabilities.



99 ebed

Structure:

The Chief Officer for children’s services, Edwina Harrison is the ASSA and Departmental decision maker for the adoption panels.
The adoption section is currently located in the adoption and fostering section of the Children’s Resources section.

Rodger Walker is the registered Manager of the Adoption service.

Two Team Managers, Val Hales and Sarah Johal manage the Adoption teams, which are divided up on a geographical basis.

Ownership:

This Implementation Plan must be owned by all staff within the Adoption Section. The Implementation Plan will be widely available
to all staff and should link to the staff appraisal system where appropriate.

Documentation Management:

The Area Implementation Plan will be managed and updated by the Adoption Management Team.



Key Theme 1 : Be Healthy

Six-Month Review

Cost /
Resources?

How will this be
Monitored?

Target

Area for Development Specific Actions By Who? Comment Ach.

/9 8bed

1.Develop and implement
an ‘Adoption Strategy’ in-
line with performance
targets and new adoption
standards to improve
speed and number of
adoptions.

1.1 Develop placement
for children with uncertain
development

1.2 Further develop
placement choice for
BME children through
the use of 2 specialist
posts.

Increase output of
approvals to 90.

Prepare annual adoption
training preparation plan.
Second time adopters to
access NCH training.
Implement the post
adoption action plan

Consider concurrent
planning

Info. sheet for adopters re:
uncertain development
Closer liaison /planning with
family placement

Devise recruitment plan for
this group of children

Develop family finding eg
brochure info on specific
children (e.g.BME),

To assess 14 (15% of 90
assessments) adopters for
BME children

Supervision and
monitoring of the output of
the staff concerned
against set targets.
Reviewed at 2 year stage
by Team Managers

Adoption Support Team
Meetings and their report

to the Resource Team
Manager.

C&F + Annual Report.

Children & Families mtgs.
Annual Report

C & F’s and annual report

March 07

June 2007

January
2007

June 2006

January
2007

Team
Managers

Adoption
Support
Manager

Margaret
Orchard &
Stuart Wilson
& Team
Managers

A&P Team

Management
Team

£101,045

£5,000

£77,086

£1,127 per
assessment x 90 =
£101,045.

12 preparation
courses.

To be costed 06 — 07.




89 abed

Area for Development

1.3. Creation of a third
adoption panel to
improve throughput.

Specific Actions

Discussion with health re:
funding of medical advisor

How will this be
Monitored?

F&A Management Team
and Adoption Panels.

By Who?

Head of
Children’s
Services

Cost /
Resources?

£6,440

Six-Month Review

Comment

Additional funding
required for medical
advisor. Business
case to be put to
Health.

Ach.




Key Theme 2 : Stay Safe

Six-Month Review

A Cost/
Area for Development Specific Actions At W.'" Lkl Resourc Comment
Monitored? es?
Ensure that all staff e Team Managers to check staff | Supervision and appraisal. | On-going Team
receive training and training portfolios Managers

refresher training in Child
Protection as
appropriate.

—p| Post approval for training | ¢  NCH course — Caring for SA Collation of attendance Team Manager | Adoption
8 for adopters Children. figures. Adoptions support
@ e Parenting strategies. grant.
3 e Piece of Cake.
Develop safe care Safe care plan to be included in Adoption Panel Panel members
planning with adopters Form F assessment to panel & agency
advisor to
panel




Key Theme 3 : Enjoy and Achieve

Six-Month Review

How will this be

Monitored? Comment

Area for Development Specific Actions

Further develop post- Implement post adoption support Six monthly development On-going Head of Funded
adoption support and action plan. day with team. Children’s through
Special Guardianship Resources adoption
support. support
Construct SGO Plan once initial grant
proposals agreed.To consult with
fostering and adoption support for 6 monthly reviews May 06 Louise
resource sharing Barnett/Sarah
Johal
N
% Develop educational e See ASPlan. Annual Review On-going Team Manager | Staff
| support for adopted child e Liaison with Education co- adoption time
© ordinator for LAC support




Key Theme 4 : Make a Positive Contribution

Six-Month Review

| L obed

A Cost/
Area for Development Specific Actions Hol\\;lvovr;liltlztrr;??be Rees:;Jrc Comment
Further develop the e Expand and improve Partnership meetings. On-going Head of Contract
partnership with “After services for birth parents, Children’s with AAY
Adoption Yorkshire™. (counselling). Resources and | £46,000
Team
e Develop intermediary On-going Manager. Contract | Costs likely to increase
services. with AAY | as this work develops.
Possible charging
e Seminar/ training events On-going | * * _ policy
for staff and adopters. o Adoption
support
grant
Develop the partnership ¢ Implement contract with Partnership meetings On-going Team Manager | Adoption
with Barnardos to provide Barnardos to ensure the support
supported lodgings for provision of service grant
adopted young people £43,000
Participation of adopters | Arrange adoption profile information | Evaluate post date July or Team
in matching process at an | evening for adopters. Sept 06 Managers
early stage Adoption &

Continue to develop
partnership with CAMHS

See adoption support plan

Review through ASP

Stuart Wilson

Team Manager
Adoption
Support




Key Theme 5 : Social Inclusion

Six-Month Review

How will this be Target Cost /

o
Monitored? Date? 7 s Resources? Comment

Area for Development Specific Actions

2/ obed

Develop and promote the | ¢  Joint working between Supervision and Ongoing Team
adoption opportunities recruitment officer and appraisal Managers
amongst all ethnic specialist F&A Officer to target
groups. BME groups through
advertising, publicity etc.
Provide support for e Advice and information to be Inter agency adoption | Ongoing Education Staff time for
adopted children in the provided for teachers and support forum Support cases
education system. governors. Adopters support Co- Staff training
group ordinator time
and
Adoption
Support
Team
Provide appropriate e Family Placement to identify Recruitment strategy Jan 07 Team
placement and support and assess suitable families. Managers
for children with
disabilities
e In conjunction with AST provide | :Liaison with adoption | Nov 06 Team
a range of support services for | & family placement Managers
children with disabilities. managers
Develop support services
for minority groups Set AS group for men and single ASTeam November Adoption Staff time
adopters 06 Support
Team

10




Key Theme 6 : Achieve Economic Well-being

Six-Month Review

- . How will this be Target Cost /
Area for Development Specific Actions Monitored? Date? By Who? Resources? Comment
Develop post-adoption e Implement post adoption plans. | Supervision Ongoing Resource
support to include Team
adopted children and Manager
adults.
-
& | Continue to develop and | e  Implement ACA regs. June 2006
@ | provide schedule 2 and
a)l intermediary services for
adopted people. o Liaise with AAY re SLA
intermediary services Contract with
AAY Likely to see increased
costs with growth in this
provision.

11



¥/ obed

Key Theme 7 : Workforce Development

Six-Month Review

How will this be
Monitored?

Cost /
Resources?

Area for Development

Specific Actions Target Date? By Who? Comment

Appraisals Ensure all staff have an annual Annually by March 07
appraisal. Resource Manager

Continuing professional e Ensure staff access e Short

development. appropriate training to course
improve practice and budget.
service. e Adoption

¢ Joint working with other support

agencies (eg Adoption budget.
Clinic).

12



Key Theme 8 : Quality Assurance and Monitoring

Six-Month Review

Cost /
Resources?

How will this be Target

Monitored? Date? Comment

Area for Development Specific Actions By Who?

Ensure the effective and | ¢  Ensure that staff report the Reports to be to be March 07 Complaints
pro-active management compliments which they receive requested six-monthly Section
of Compliments and from Adopters. from the Complaints
Complaints Section
Ensure that the Adoption | ¢  Review Minimum Standards Management On-going Management
Service meets the Action Plan. development days March team
soNational Minimum
& Standards for Adoption e Action audit and develop plan for July 2006
@ Service and Adoption Adoption Support Minimum
ySupport Service Standards.
Ensure ACA Review project board Reconvened project Sept 06 Team
implementation complete | recommendations. Board Managers
adoption with
Lynne Buckle
Monitor adoption panel Annual report (inc. statistical Report to executive May 2006 Team
activity and performance. | information) committee Managers
adoption
Annual review of panel members Panel feedback December | Chair of
2006 Panel
All reports checked by team ongoing Panel
managers children & adoption. members

hmr/AdoptionimplementationPlan

13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76



Adopters approved by Panel:
1992/93
1803/94
1994/95
1895/98
1956/97
1997/98
1998/99
1999/00
2000/01
2001/02
2002/03
2003/04
2004/05
2005/08
Children accepted for adoption
1992/93
1993/94
1994/95
1895/96
1996/97
1997/98
1998/99
1899/00
2000/01
2001/02
20023
2003/04
2004/05

2005/06

ADOPTION PANEL STATISTICS

54
46
55
36
30
65
68
58
59
72
81
55
43

59

148
159

131

150
77
84
B9
94
108
81
98
76

84

Page 77



Children matched with adopters:
1892/93
1993/94
1994/95
1995/96
1996/97
1997798
1998/99
1949/00
2000/01
2001/02

2002/03

2003/04

2004/05

2005/06

93

81

59

63 (6 Inter-agency)

65 (21 Inter-agency)

89 (7 Inter-agency)

74 (3 Inter-agency)

76 (5 Inter-agency)

83

04 (12 Inter-agency)

84 including {12 Inter-agency
{7 Consortium)

(1 Vol. agency)

63 including (8 Inter-agency)
(1 Consortium)

63 including {2 Inter-agency)
(2 Consortium)
{4 Vol. agency)

86 including (9 Inter-agency)
(6 Consortium)
{4 Vol. agency)

Page 78



Children currently on

referral for adoption =54

Females = 19

Males = 35 )

S Female
Ethnicity ~
White UK , 12
Jamaican . 0
Pakistan - ' 1
White UK / italian o 0
White / Asian . 0
White UK / Iraqgi Kurdish ) 1
White British / African/Caribbean . 1
Chinese o 1
African - o 2
White British / franian i 1
Total  _ ) 19
Religion
No Specified Religion 18
Muslim [,
Total o 18
Age Range _
Babies 0-12mths 9
Pre-School Age{1 -4) T 7
[Age group 4+ IS R
Total ] . 9
Sibling Groups
Children in sipling groups of 2 L9
Children in sibling groups of 3 1

‘Male

[
|

- OO0 OWaln a.

gmmé—x:Au_xu_‘.{gf

Total

Page 79




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80



Couples
Single Female

Total

(White British

Indian_

Totai

0-12

Pre-School (1 - 4)
Aged+
Total

for .

1
2
Total

Gender of children

Female Couples
Adopters Ethnicity

White British / Indian

|WhiteBritish/White Asian
Age group of children

0-12 Freeley given baby

[Number of children approved reo

i
M
-~

— -1-——.——'—- —

number of Adopters Approved and avyaiting a match = 32

B

b
i

|

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 82



R}oDEAT T \ L

Adoption Services Budgets

1. Assisted adoptions: £783,820
NB. This is an accumulating budget, primarily made up of ongoing weekly adoption allowances for
children up until the age of 18 and beyond if in full time education. This budget now includes funding
for post adoption support payments of £100.000 which was until this year part of the 3 year ring
fenced adoption support grant.

2. Inter agency adoption s: £165,570

This provides for payments to agency providing families for Leeds children that we been unable to
place either in house or via the consortium.

3. Adoption panel costs: £19,320

4. Adoption support training: £15,000

5. Barnardos Supported lodgings: £41,206
6. Special Guardianship support: £4,000
7. After Adoplion Yorkshire SLA £42,636
8. Professional staff costs: £459,639

9.  Administrative support costs £94,165

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 84



............................................................. DCJO@CO Sdd

¥

HOUVYIN g34 NVl
L0
dnoio 3KNg dnoig g dnougy JNg
yuop AI01SIH Yoe|g S4d / saebed gapy maN
awaly ] JWEMP9M uondopy [BucheN IET spua ubledwen
S4d S4d £SUEIS |2PoW Sdd maney Abereing JINE / lBAlWIED sleal sng
* x £ * * ‘
23d AON 100 d3S ony Alnr
o< 1bv GE < LEv l¢ <GEv
dnois 544 dnois ang dnoigy vonesws|dw| S4d
Aeq obueyax3 asnoy u| ybiupgo4 ajen 49)s04 sabed gapn uondopy maN
iuBrediues Z Aeq aBueysx3g uBiedwen
uondopy JNg YN 0 T sieay sng Buiyoid dd+ ubredwe) ddd
* * ¥* * * E 3
INAr AVIN Blt=l= HOYVYIN g34 NV
90

sjsanbai syoed oyul uondope <

sjsenbau syoed ojul Buuslsoy

Ajyjuow aie sBunasy oju] uopdopy +

‘sabed

qam pue sajdwexsa Juswiiuwed buisiyaape Je|nBal 10} 9sI3A3s 995 -{wnwiun) Yiuow Jad sauinbug uadopy Gz pue sapnbus Bulissod g abeJsae uo aonpoid o}
pauBisap aJe saanenu Anongnd pue Buisiiaape snolep Jesk sepusjed sy) JnoyBnoiy) siseq Bujnuiues B U0 PAsIJIAPE $1 JUSLLYINIDAI 13)dOopy pue Jale Jasod ,

“fuangnd 7 Buisiaape paoeld BuioBuo o} uolippe Ul ‘4/900g 0} POUUEd JO PAASIYIE SDAIBINUL JUS WD) aads | pajabiey aug ale moRqg paubiybiy

L/900¢

uondopy pue Bunvlsod j Abajenyg JuawnIodYy

Page 85



dnoug) Buluuely NG

J3a

£2INY30)E BILUDId S UaIRYD

sBunsey sy n

3NAr

Jubieduwes 1509
saljiwe ] Yoeig

AON

454

dnossy Buuueld IwAa

sheq afiueydx3 U¥N

AV

JMEIS Gdd

SpJEMY S18A8I4DY Yoe|g

Luop AIOISIH Yoeg
$aapn uondopy

120

Rlt-r-\4

HOYUVIA

maney Abolens

dnousy buluue|d 3Ng

&U| doug veysay

d3S

dIv / sjuswa|3
ang oauby

HOUVIN

g34

[BAILIED

aines 4 |eallie)
subiybIH wwo)

onvy

d34

Nvr

L0

Buuued
uBiedweq uondopy

Alnr

NVl

90

L0 - 90 ABajeng juswninioasy JNg

Page 86



ADDENDUM 7
DAY 1 PREPARING TO ADOPT

9.30am Introductions to the day — fire exits/toilets/refreshments
Brief look at what we will be covering today

9.45am Human Bingo

10.00am Introduce your neighbour

10.10am The meaning of adoption exercise 2 pg 11

10.25am The Adoption Process pg 19

10.35am What we have to offer exercise 3 or alternative do as a large group and
write up on flip chart reasons for adopting in general / Why are children adopted
do the same as above .

11am coffee break

11.15am The children’s future who decides exercise 1 pg 20

11.35am Who are the children quiz pg 22 do as a large group and discuss as
you feed back the answers. The quiz and answers are on pg 40-41. At this point
could talk about the adoption planning process for the child pg 48 will need
adjust so it is personal to Leeds policies.

12 — 1pm Lunch

1pm Child development quiz pg 59 answers pg 60

1.30pm What children need from parents pg 61 + video sections 3 + 4 illustrate
reciprocity

2pm Adopters personal experience

2.30pm coffee break

2.45pm Children’s basic needs pg 62-63

3pm What’s acceptable behaviour pg 79 instructions for exercise on pg 70/71

3.45pm End of the day any questions and what we will cover tomorrow

Page 87



9.30.1

10.00

10.45

11.0

11.30

12.15

12.30

1.00p.m.
1.45p.m.
2.45p.m.
3.00p.m.

4.00p.m.

DAY 2 PREPARING TO ADOPT
Welcome and round -

One thing each person remembers or took away from Day 1
Any questions from Day 1 or issues raised?

Aims of the day + programme

Adopters experience

COFFEE

Overcoming the Effects of Abuse (+ health warning )
The experiences of neglected and abused children

Ex 2 whole group ex. Write up on flip chart —
Experiences................... Behaviours

Children’s behaviour and our responses

Case studies ( single sex gps. )

e How do you feel about this behaviour?

e Why do you think it might be happening?

e What would you do?

Positive interventions - Presentation ( p75)
Making it better

Ex Promoting Attachment

LUNCH

Adopters Experience

Tea

Video Adopters talking section 1

Finish

Page 88



9.30

9.45p.m.

10.05

10.30

10.45

Day 3 Preparing to Adopt
Welcome

Questions from yesterday
Aims and programme

Thinking about change

Thinking about change/loss in own life— guided recall 30secs
e How did you feel?

e How did you behave?

e How long did it last?

e What made things worse?

e What helped?

15mns in sm gps ( sgle sex ) + feedback

How would you feel if 6 mnths later asked to repeat loss?
What would be your reaction?

Impact on children depends on their resilience

What a child loses

Whole gp ex Jamilla

What a birth parent loses

Video and discussion
The stages of grief — presentation

How well do you know your family background?
Quiz and presentation — which gaps matter the most?
A child’s life story — Ben

e What will he need to know about his birth family?
e What would he need to know?
e How will he know?

COFFEE

Page 89



11.15

11.45

12.45

1.30

2.30

3.00

3.45

Contact, making it work — Jamilla

e How do you feel about the arrangements for contact?

e How will this contact benefit you?

e How can you make the contact work for yourself and
your family?

Contact brings benefits for adopters e.g. helping child settle
Talk thro’ how contact works in practice

Resilience: where does it come from?

Why do some people survive difficulties and hardships
reasonably well,while others with similar experiences do not?

Helping a child build resilience

What is resilience? How do we build it?
LUNCH

Adoptees experience

Tea

Adoption: the everyday challenges

What if? Indiv + with partners, choose 3 scenarios
What and when to tell

Handout + workbook article Alan Burnell
Adoption as a life long task — presentation
Asking for help - balloons

Conclusion
Summarise + Adoption support services

GOOD LUCK!

Page 90



Futures

FUTLNES v Vith veiuricers 1o sUppo~t young
people eaving cave, homeless young peoole and
acopted voung people. We have different grouos of
volanleers: those that offor a home 1o yourg people,
those thit offer emergency accommadation, anc those

tha: offer support for a few hours a week.

Volunteers are pecple who enjoy being witn young
people and care aooul what nappens to them, They get
traming and 24 hour supoort They receve expenses
that don't affect berefits. Our volunteers come from
many different Dackgrounds and have differing skills and
akilites. They may be famiiizs, single peosle, parents,
grandparents, lesbian o~ gay.

Young people are usaally aped between 16 and 18; they
came from all different areqs and backgrouncs. They
have different needs: somre neec little support some

need a tot of your tirme and support.

ADDED UM |

Barnardo's Futures
2 Rokeby Gardens
Headingley
Leeds | 56 3|7

Tel: 01132757314

Ema

: futures@barnardos.org.uk

8
g
S
T
]
s
=2

Barnardo’s

YORKSHIRE
GIVING CHILDREN BACK THEIR FUTURE

www.barnardos.org.uk

Barnardo’s

YORKSHIRE
GIVING CHILDREN BACK THEIR FUTURE



Young people

Are things difficult at home?
We may be able to help

We work with volunteers who have a special interest
in helping young people and their families, and can
offer you a safe place to stay when things aren’t going
too weli at home.

As well as offering you some accommadation the
volunteer will work with you and your family to try
and help you all.

You may be able to stay with them every so often so
that you and your family can have a break from each
other or you may decide you are getting ready to
leave home and become more independent in which
case you might want to consider staying with
somebody for longer.

We wilt discuss with you and your parents what type
of help you all think is best for you and your family
and then try to match you with a volunteer we think
you will get along with.

You will always be able to meet the volunteer and go
to visit their home so you can see if

you like each other before decid

if you would lile to go and stay

with them.

Parents

Are you and your teenage child having
difficulties getting along!

We have established our service in recognition that
parents and young people often experience difficultes at
this time. Our aim is to support you and your child by
offering safe and supportive accommedation with
volunteers who are committed to helping familes

stay together:

How can we help?

It may be that you just need occasicnal time out’ from
each other or it may be that vour child may benefit from
moving into mare permanent accommodation in order
for you all to be able to maintain your relationship with
each other,

Some of our volunteers will be able to offer _,mm:c_m_,
planned breaks and others may be able to provide
longer term accommeodation or a-combination of bath, In
some cases we may be able to provide emergency
accommodation in times of crisis,

We want you to be involved at all stages of the planning
for you- child to receive supported lodgings. You will be
able to see where your child is going to stay, meet with
the voluntear and keep in regular cortact with them.

Our vo'unteers come from alf walks of life and are all
people who have an interest in helping young people and
their families stay. together: They have been assessed and
trained by us and receive 24 hour support,

We try to match young people with volunteers wha can
offer appropriate support to meet their needs.Young
people always get a chance to meet with a volunteer and
visit their home before a making a decision about going
to stay. We would want you, as parents to be involved in
this process as much as possible.

Volunteers

You will need to like young ceople and have a
commitment to helping families whao are
experiencing difficulties,

For all children tecnage years can be particularly difficult
as young people are developng a strong serse of
identity and trying to beconre more independent. fer
adopted young pecple, some of whom may have had
dificult or traurratic life experiences this can be an
even more difficul: time. Parents and young pecple
sometimes need 1o have break from eack cther in
order 1o keep things on a mo-e even keel.

Our adopted supported lodgings service has been
developed te try and suppert young pecple and thai
families at this time and to ersure that vital relations-ups
between children and parents can be maintamed.

Do you have a spare room and some time
to offer support to a young parsen ard
their family?

Page 92

If vou could offer either short term planned breaks cr
longer term accommaodation to help support a young
person and their family, please contact us.




ADDENDUM K 1




Contents

An Introduction to the Adoption Linking Services 2

How to set up an Agreement 3
Retaining Links 4
How the Adoption Contact Register Works 4
Key Points for Birth Parents 5
Key Points for Adoptive Parents 8
Contact Agreements Arranged in the Future 11

Problems and Queries, Advice and Counselling 12

Appendix: Example of a Contact Agreement 13

Page 94



st

&3

&

troduction to the Adaption Linking Services

The purpose of the Post Adoption Linking Service is 1o provide a
means by which infarmation, letters and photographs may be
exchanged between birth families and adoptive families untif the
child reaches adulthcod.

Contact may have different meanings for people using the
service. Whilstin afew cases, direct or face to face contact may
be part of the adoption plan, this service is primarily set up to act
as a'post box'Infoermation Exchange, passing written information
between the birth family and the adoptive family.

The Information Exchange will enable information to be
exchangedover along period of time.

The Information Exchange will ensure complete confidentiality
for the respective parties.

The Information Exchange will not be able to accept presents,
maoney or gift vouchers

The Exchange will only disclose/send information as detaited in
the Adoption Contact Agreement.

Over along pericd of time contact needs can change. Ifone
party feels that the original contract agreement needs to be
renegotiated, please contact the adoption archivist.

How to set up an Agreement

& The Adoption Contact Agreement needs careful thought by all
those involved. The social worker and the Fostering and
Adoption Officer should discuss possibilities and ideas with the
pirth family and the adoptive family as well as with the child if
she/heis old encugh to have a view an the subject.

There is a special form to use to draw up the agreement.

Itis essential to be precise when recording the arrangement.
Complicated contact agreements are less likely to work than
clearly worded simple statements, understood by everyone
concerned.

Contact Agreements should be considered at the planning stage of

any adoption placement
To]
® Hopefullyinitial discussions will ensure a workable agreementis ©

reached which is satisfactory to everyone. Thefine tuning of the >
agreement can be completed in the period after the child is

©
o
placed and before the adoption orderis made.

Where the birth family is not in agreement with the adoption
plan, it may not be possible to explore the setting up of a contact
agreement at this stage. The possibility of arranging an
agreement in the future however should always be discussed
and clearly recorded so thatall views are represented.

Once the type and frequency of the contact has been agreed the
Adoption Contact Agreement should be prepared and all parties
should receive a copy. This needs to be keptin a safe place.
Acopy of the agreement must be placed on the adoption file, in
order thatafurther copy can be taken for any signatory to the
agreement who may misplace his/her own copy.



# There are different ways for adoptive families and birth families to
retain links:

...5ome families prefer a two way link with both parties sending
andreceiving information. Photos may or may not be part of this.

...Some adoptive families wish to receive information/photos
frombirth families but prefer not to send (or birth families do not
wish to receive).

...5ome birth families wish to receive information from adoptive
families but prefer not to send (or adoptive families do not wish
toreceive]. Itisusually best to have a set date. However,
whatever your agreement, please avoid Christmas and Birthdays
as these are emotional times for everyone.

# |nformation at other times to be sentonly when thereisa
significant change or eventin either the birth family or the
adoptive family e.g. seriousillness, death or major achievernents
etc. -

& (hange of address by either the birth parents or adoptive
parents. Thisis particularly important for the future if the child
wishes to try and trace his or her birth family. Itis vitally
important if either family moves te live abroad.

4. How the Adoption Contact Register works

& Once anadoption order has been made, the adoption case files
are stored in the Leeds Social Service archive, Files are kept for
100 years. Ifacontactagreement has been drawn up between
the birth family and the adoptive family, the information is
separately recorded on the Adoption Information Exchange.
When information/ietters/photegraphs are sent to the
Exchange, the adoption archivist will record and store the
information on the child's file, until it is requested.

Key Peints for Birth Parents

Information to be sent by birth relative

@ Itisimportant to remember to write the child’s kirth name and
surname on any information sent to the Adoption Archivist.

& Presents, vouchers and money wi | not be accepted,

% The Exchange should only send or disclose informaticn which has
been detailed in the Adoption Contact Agreement. Any variation to
this should be discussed beforehand with the Adoption Archivist.

@ [tisimportant to remember that your child needs to feel good
about being in an adoptive family and not guilty or worried about
you. Please do not send emotional letters to your child as this will
not be easily shared with therm and may cause unnecessary worry.

If you want assistance in writing a letter please ask your social ©
worker or the Adopticn support workers, o
(There are examples of two letters at the end of this section). mu

a-

@ Please do nctputyour address or telephone number in any letter t
your child as this can cause upset.

Information to be received

@ [tisimportant to remember that you have to request information
on each separate cccasion you are due to receive some
information. This wili ensure your information is sent to the correct
address and does not get lost.

& Please keep the Archivistinformed of your address. Adopted adults
often return to Social Services wishing to find out information
abouttheir birth families. Leaving your address will assist us with
tracing family members.

& Ifyou do notrequest the information it will be kept on the child's file
foryou to request at a fater date.

@ Whenyourchildreaches 18 years of age they will be able to request
accesstotheirfiles. This may include any information sentin by
adoptive parents over the years which has not been requested by
birth parents.



Dear Sally

I hope you are well and happy with your family and friends. ! hope
you are enjoying school. | went to visit your birth grandma last
Tuesday as it was her birthday.

We had a lovely time and she opened her presents. | hope you had a
good birthday. Did you get some nice presents? | remember when
you had your first birthday and we went to the park. You used to like
playing on the swing but | had to keep hold of you as you kept
letting go. You had a cheeky smile. Your birth father, Chris is still
working as a printer. We are going on heliday to Scarborough in the
summer and staying in a caravan. We like to walk on the beach and
have an ice cream and | might even paddle in the sea. Your birth
Auntie Maureen, my older sister, sends her love to you, We used to
see her every week when you were little. You have two birth cousins
- Amy aged 2 years and Peter whao is just 6 menths old. He has got
two teaeth now and can sit up by himself.

Chris says he hopes that you are growing bigger and sends hislove.
We both think about you a lot and hope you enjoy school. I know
that you will be happy and well looked after by your mummy and
daddy. It's lovely to hear how you are growing up. | look forward to
seeing how much you have grown when { see your photo.

Here's two photos for you. One of me and Chris when we were at
your birth grandma’s house, Can you see that we were having a
party and a bit of a laugh, The other is your twe tousins - don't they
look cheeky? I've put their names and dates of birth on the back so
that you can look at them and remember who they are,

Anyway, | am thinking about you and ! wili write next year.

Lots of Love

Andrea, your birth mum

Dear Michael

How quickly this year has gone - it does not seem long since | last
wrote to you. | cannot believe you are 14 soon.

I loved the photograph of you diving. | am so pleased that you are a
good swimmer; you probably got that from my father, Jack. He was
also good at football and rugby — | wonder if you are?

I moved two months ago and | am glad | did. The last house was old
and always seemed cold and damp. This house is more modern and
itis really warm and cosy. Also, it is much quieter round here than
where we used to live.

Your haif-brother, Richard is 10 years old and Stacey is nearly 8, They
fight like cat and dog most of the time. Richard supports Manchester
United and Stacey supports Leeds {though § think she does that to
wind him up), | have sent photographs of thern doing monkey bars
at the park.

I had a big surprise recently when the doctor told me | am expecting
a baby. It is due next March. Richard and Stacey are already arguing
about what itis going to be called and who will play with him or her.

I know that you have a younger adoptive brother but | am not sure
how old he is. | wonder if you two fight? | saw from the other
photograph you sent that you have two dogs, They look very
friendly. thave got a German Shepherd. He logks really fierce but he
is soft - he is called King.

Well, | can't think what else to tefi you right now, though 1 expect |
will think of lots more the minute | post the letter.

Be happy and healthy and do as well as you can at school. We are all
thinking of you and will write again next year.

Lots of Love

Marlene

Page 97



Hey Poiats for Adoptive Parents
Information to be sent out by adopter(s)

& tisimportant toremember to write your child's birth name on
any information sent to the Adoption Archivist so that they can
locate the correct files.

& Birth relatives need honestinformation about their child's
progress. They do not want to feel blamed by the adoptive
famity. Facts such as height, build, personality, likes and dislikes
are likely to be of interest as well as how the child is gettingon at
school, hobbies, activities and friendships etc.

% Please remember that birth parents look forward to receiving
information and photos. Please bear in mind the presentaticn of
your correspondence and any photos should be of a reasonable
standard so they canbe putina frame.

Do not send school reports which clearly identify the school or
school photos where a child is wearing a school emblem. This
can jeopardise the confidential nature of the placement and may
cause upset to the birth family and to yourself.

& Adoptive parent(s} can contact the Archivist to check whether
the information sent has been requested by the birth relative,

& If the adoptive family does not send information as detailed in
the original agreement, then the Archivist will contact the family
by letter reminding them of the arrangement,

Information to be received hy adoptive parent(s)

% Information received for the adoptive family will be automatically
sent cut by recorded delivery when the Archivist receives it from
tne birth famity.

& Theinformation will not usually be cpened by the Archivist.
Any concerns you have about the contents of the information
should be directed back to the Archivist o the Principal
Caseworker Adoption support for discussion before yau share it
with your child.

Itis important t¢ remember that as your child grows up he or she
may have particular wishes or feelings in relation to contact.

Any requests to change the arrangements must be made in writing
to the Adoption Archivist who will endeavour to arrange for the
agreement to be re-negotiated by both parties,

Example of two letiers sent by adoptive parent(s)

Dear Tracey

Dean has seftled down well and is making lots of friends at
school. He has grown and is now one and a half metres tall. He is
still very slim but is growing very tall. He loves his food and his
favourite is chicken nuggets. He loves climbing and can now ride
a bike without stabifisers. He is very confident and plays with his
friends who live nearby. He is doing well at school but doesn't
always listen to the teachers! He is doing well with his reading
but struggles with his writing. The school are very pleased with
his progress.

We went on holiday in the summer and he enjoyed playing in the
sand and eating ice cream.  He likes building lego and loves
hearing stories. We sometimes look at his life story book which
has some photos of you in and we talk about you. He likes to talk
about his birth family and we are pleased that you are writing to
him to let him know how you are.

Page 98

We will write again next year. Hope you are well,

Best wishes

Tom and Lucy




Dear Julie and Michael

Since | wrote last year Susan has really grown up. She is healthy and
happy and at thirteen she likes going out with her friends and
listening to music. She loves fashion clothes and there is always
samething new that she wants — but doesn't always get!! Susan went
camping in the summer with school for a few days and really enjoyed
herself apart from getting soaking wet when there was a
thunderstorrn}

Susan is doing okay at school but still struggles a bit with her lessons.
She has extra help in the classroom to help her concentrate.

Susan has a good sense of humour and is constantly making jokes.
! wonder who she gets that from? She is also very stubborn - are
there any family traits in this??

Her yaunger adopted brother is 10 years old and they get on well
most of the time. She's guite protective of him but can't stand it if he
wants to talk to her when her friends are around.

Susan hasn't decided what she wants to do when she leaves school
but is quite keen on cooking and might become a chef. She also
quite likes the idea of helping animals in some way. We have two
dogs who she loves to pieces.

Thanks for your last letter. Susan enjoyed reading about her half
sisters and your letters gave us an opportunity to talk about her birth
family. Susan is aware of who everyone is and it is nice to get up to
date information for her. She has said that she would like to write
next year te you herself. Would that be okay?

Anyway, Il sign off now and hope you are keeping well and happy.
Best wishes

Maureen

7. (ontact Agreements Arranged in the Future

In certain circumstances it is possible 1o set up a contact agreement
after an Acoption order has been finalised. Again everyone must
agree to it, and of course, any agreement will depend on people
being located and then contacted by the Sccial Services, in arder for
the agreemeant to be drawn up.

In situations where either party cannot be found it is possible tc
leave information on the child's file in case of contact in the future,

Adopted adults often return to the Department seeking information
about their birth origins. For birth parents wanting o be contacted
when their child becomes an adult, leaving up to date information,
and an address will be a useful aid in assisting with tracing family
members.

Page 99




Probtems and Queries, Advice and Counselling

Anyone experiencing particular difficulties or wanting further
advice regarding the Adoptien Information Exchange can write 1o
the Adoption Archivist, or ¢/o the address below:

Adoption Support Team, Leeds Social Services, Adoption Archives,
Selectapost 9,

110 Merrion Centre, Leeds L$2 8QA

Tel 0113 247 8874 or 0113 247 4654

The Adoption Support Team is aiso able to provide advice,
information and counselling for involved people with adoption -
this inciudes adopted people, birth parents and adoptive parents.
lel 247 4654.

After Adoption Yorkshire is a regional independent post adoption
service offering advice and counselling to anyone affected by
adoption. Their address is:

After Adoption Yorkshire, 31 Moor Road, Headingley, Leeds LS6 4BG
Tel 0113 230 2100 www.afteradoptionyorkshire.org.uk

For adoptive families there is an organisation called Adoption UK —
they offer a range of advice, support and on adoption.

Adoption UK, 46 The Green, South Bar Street, Banbury,
Oxfordshire OX16 9AB

Helpline 0870 7700450 www.adoptionuk.org.uk

Counselling Services and support for birth families can be
obtained from:

Natural Parents Network

NPN Helpline Tel 08454 565031 ‘

The National Organisation for Counselling Adoptees and their
Parents (NORCAP) can be contacted at:

112 Church Road, Wheatley, Oxfordshire OX33 1LU

Tel 01865 875000

{eeds City Council Department
of Social Services

Contact address:
Department of Social Services, Adoption Archives,
110 Merrion Centre, Selectapost 9, Leeds LS2 8QB Tel 0113 2478874

Adoption Contact Agreement between birth parent(s) and
adoptive parent(s):

Child's Information:

Birth Surname: - . Smith

Forename(s): John

DOB: 4597

Year of Adoption Hearing: 1999

Adoption Osnmq\moom_ Worker: Jo Bloggs (Social Worker) and =

Mary Poppins (Fostering and >aovﬂ_oal

Details of Agreement (og exchange of letters/photos etc, by whom, when mﬁ%
Ann and Benny are the adoptive parents of John. They would like to
exchange an annual letter and photograph with Betty, John's Birth mother.

1. Apnand Benny should send their information 1o the Adopsion Archives addresslisted
above iny October of each vear.

P

Betty shauld contact the Adeption Archivist to tonfinm her address and any informiation
will be sent tohier.

3. Befty should send her information for Jobn te the Adeption Archives in September and the
Aooption Archivist wili send thison to Arn and Benny.

Signatories of Agreement: (First name only)

Birth Parents: _ Adoptive Parent(s):
Date: B Date:

Social Worker: _ Child:

Date: - _ - Date:

This is a voluntary agreement and can be re-negotiated by either party.






This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102



001Z 052 £110 “[2L

DYF RS

- Aoypuppron

&

MR wnQeuz2aQy

uondopy ul paajoauj ajdoag
Aof 2314423¢ 1i0ddng
151Ip122dS yuapuadapui uy

a41YSs)yi0X
uondopy
L4

"'SPaYT Ul ID1JJO UlBW INO J® 10 awoy
InoA 01 Jeau pagduelle aq ued siusunujoddy

“u0r8al Ay ul
SUMO] 93.1B] J50UI 01 ISO[D SISBY YIEII-INO0
JO WalsAS aArsuaya1dwod e padao[aasp
AR DM I[CISSPIDE IOW SIIIAIDS
Ino ayew 01 A831ens Ino jo yed sy

ATIVNOISSII0UHd ANV
ATIVNOSYId 4T3IH 01 FYIH

NOID3Y FHL DONIYIAOD

WeyR oYy ¢
PRIZRYS
AgswLD \
i_a A3|suleg &
N P &
N el pryayepe PIPUSISPPIH
SN s Pl XeRH
: /5:&8 Kdles Projpeige
,,, P Ajybiay i
| 10 &
./.u e ajeboLieH
<’
fl/J
[N
//. cotm__mm_toz
fmseoesm

wd 002 01 W Og'p Appsaupap

wid 00T 01 wWe g0l
AbplLi] ® Abpsiny] ‘Appsan] Appucp

SANOK Puiuado aury adiapy

sdpp ¢ uiylm pup Apduwioad
SIAINDUD |jD 01 pUOSaL |1M 30 @

Y BA0 24y SHA0AUOIIAOPBAL] B MMM
1P 2JIS gam 4no USIA ¢

¥ Bio'Apbmojur (01 [ipWT 4

"OdF 957 spea] ‘A3jfurppar]
‘POOY ACOW [E 10 SR 0} 1AM @

00IZ 0EZ ETT0 Uo sn buly ¢
12241p SR JDPJUOD UDPD RO

d1dH L1329 OL MOH

00IZ 0£Z €110 )]

(a2}
o
—



e

e R i RN

299760 0 AAPY 3
‘GO6YEZE ou Bay
‘FoIpAONE Aq pariudl] Aubduwio)
B puUp L1482 peinlsiBad v 340 3\ &

PAIYSUIOOULT IN

PUD IPISADGUINY “2YSHAOL $50400

SPINAOYIND (P30} YHM SHUBUaBUDLID

drysisulipd pub ‘Ssjonpiapul pup s1snd

WCAf SUOHDUOP ‘puil] AU i)
Burpnjsuy sjupiB Agq papunj aip oy &

‘Wondopy
Jo aoualiadxa jpuocissajoid pup jpuosiad
Y11 SA2340M I510I22dS JO WPl 1 24D 2y &

JIV IM OHM

£

Ajpuubf ying piiys paidopp
ARoA YHM OIS 0} Bullpjad sanNss!
Buipnjoul vonidopp op Bullbloid 4an)pu

AP wo proddns pub adiape tupm nod Jf -

430

ST{) XIP3 O] pasu pup 24N1)A3 40 2084
Weauzljlp o Jo pjlys v pardopr nod jf
HnoIApYag Bulbuaj[bys

HUM UAPIYDd BUuaipd A0f 5216310418
mogp roddns pup adjapp jupm noA Jj
‘volldope 1Hogp

phiys anod Bua) up diay iwpm nod |y

@&

&

SRR ¥ aaikdopy

2anlbrad
Y1 A0 plif> pardopr 1004 1Negp
UoRPULioful 40 a21ApP jupm nod Ji

A1V 84

Yi41q 40 43]YPnpp 10 uos pardopp
AN0A PULIZPIUGD U0 33IAPDP Jubm NoA Jj
‘nod YHMm 12P10D

uiyow 421ybnpp 40 vos 4hod jo
Anugissod ayy 4240 vl 01 jupm oA Ji
“WBISH] O} LU 3XP) M oM
Apogaidos yum uonidopv s,pnydr 4nodi
Moqe sEUaaf aapys 0f jups oA jf

*

SDUTUAD ] YIALG

‘Buiilas

dno4B p ul sAay10 yllm aouatiadxe
Uondopp anod a4pys o} jupm noAd Ji
O a4

v 42l 40 240f3q Jioddus tupa nod ff
Apuip) y)dig 4anoA wnmoge

o Bulpulf Ho adjapp upm nod Jf
wondope sned thoge

2UOBUIOS 01 IP) 01 2411 piaom nod i

,@.

@

&

£

Fpdong paydopy

idTIH IM
NVD OHM

o

Anjpnxas 40 Apge ‘2bo Uapush
‘b4 Jo ssappivbBal sposu [pnplalpul
400A 40} edsat ue paskg asiadas
PAIISUBS B BuIplAcAd 0] JURUIWMLOD ¥ &
wondope Ul Yo4vasad pup 2210044
a.n2 Bulpnpoul sisyplaads uondopp
Buipbal Aq sAPUIWas pup sdoysyion 4
sjpuoissajold
A0S BuiUIpA] pub HONBIHSUU) ¥
'SHdApd Y14lg
pup aldoad pajdopp ‘siuaipd aanidopp
A0S sautayIs Appng, pur BUiA0IUan $
‘sansst wolldopp jo a6upd b Uo
201A43s 14oddny pup aoiApp UCIPIPaW Y 4
SPAUBJaL 141G 41aY] 1M
12DJUOD ML A0 3YPIU O] PUlJUBM 24D
oym ajdoad 4o ad1a48s A4pIpawiisiul Uy &
'$IALIDIZA YiAlG 3I0A]

01 Buiysim asoyl ISISSE 0] 221A49s Y2025 §
sarjnun) yraq pup spuadbd aandopp
‘dqdovd pardopr 10 sdnoab rioddng 4

‘Bupresunod
pup poddns 31ape [pjjueprfuo) &
FUI BNAPP 2UOYAII] &

uoIPaL
2Y] 50400 21qO[IbAR SjURWWIOddY &

43J10 IM LVHM




N N2/

spaan ul

sjuaied yig Jo4
S9JIAleg Jioddng

CRITNETS
juated yuig

ITYSHIOX
uonydopy 133y

2994601 "ON AjeyD Bay ‘5069626 ON

‘Bay sajueient Aq papuiir AUedIoD B S1 aiysyIoA uojidopy Jaly

wd 002 0} wd 00°% Kepsaupap

wd g0’} 03 Wwe 0o 0L
Aepud ‘Aepsiny) ‘Aepsan] ‘Aepuop

sinoH Butuado aurt sommpy

0021 0€C €L1IO

, :Buijeo
Aq apew aq ued sjuswjuloddy

"awoy
INOA je juswsaaibe Aq Jo ‘@10
SpaaT Jno je ‘saseq |eO0} Z}
iNO JO BUO Je Uaads ag uea ho

"BAIYSHIO A
SS0.10€ S89IA13S SIAYO
Mou alilysyio A uondopy 19y

sa33a

AAC 957
Y0201 VIN LSOd33ud

FUIHSHIOA

NOILJOAV ¥314V

T}
o
b et
()
(@)}
©
o




Ew- "8} $,plIyo InoA u) juased
lew-3 yuig e se Jed Jnok 00s o) noA digH
suoldaya | "PIYD In0A pue
J|@sInoA 1oy sjuswabuele joeuod
apOSISOd ainny sy} puelsispun o) Nok disH e
PIYD JNOA 10} Ja)1a| B S)M O) NoA dioH
gs8l - *14Jono) Ul NeA
PPV nd sjendosdde j pue |ag) Jjesinok
alj syualed Jayjo Moy Mouy NoA 13T e
sweN

‘uofidope s pjiyo JnoA Jnoge buijesy
aJe noA moy pue A0S JNoA 0y UDYSIT

‘{(paJsinbaus dwejs ou) 3sod pue yoejsp

‘mojaq sjiejap 1nok ut |y asea|d ‘AjlLuey Jnok pue noA uo uondope
: 10 S)08Y8 8y} Ihoge el oy noA digH
uonewlojul Jayunj ayl| pjnom nox yj

10} SWIE 83{AI8G JUdIRd Ylig INQ

‘SalNOIYIp
Jeuciiowa pue |B1D0s asea o) Buidjay
ui je1oyausq St )l punoy eAey pue siead
40 Jaquunu e 1o} saAe|al pue saijiwe} Juiq o}
poddns Juapuadapu) BuLiayo ussg aABY

"s19)dope pue pajdope usaq
aaey oym ajdoad ‘syuased yuig Ajeroadse
‘uodope Ul PaA|oAUl SI OYm auoAuy

édray am op oym

(o)

o
"90IAI9S [BUSPIJUCD B 1840 9 A -
()

(@]

"SOJIAISS |BID0S SB yons R
suonesiuebio Jayjo woly Ajsjeledas yom s

spoen ul paseq
uonesiueblo Juspuadspul |lewsS B a2 app

Jam ale oym




There s ial service cost which includes the

nurchase of up to two birth, death or marriage

certificates. Details of costs on enguiry. B the search is

guing to cost more, we will let you know and ask your
F

permission hefore continuing.

Fees are nol refundable if we are unabie to help you

find the person you are looking for.

if you find difficuity in meeting these fees we may still
ke able Lo help, please ask.

If you would like us to search for you, please ring
0113 278 6487 1o discuss the details,

Contact us at:

After Adoption Yorkshire
31 Moor Road
Headingley

Leeds LS6 4BG

Tel: 0113 278 6487
Email: info@aay.org.uk

Website: www.alteradoptionyorkshire org.uk

After Adoption Yorkshire

ST Si: IEE 100 R bt i oo 1 YErkshine and i ot ks

After Adoption Yorkshire

Support services lor those involved wr adoption in Yorkshire and the Humber

Page 107



After Adoption Yorkshire is an independent charity
which provides support, advice, intermediary and
mediation services, for anyone in the Yorkshire and
Humber region whose life 1s touched by adoption. One of
the most comman reasens people approach us is to ask
for help_in finding out about birth families. We have
found that iLis impartant for peaple to know scmething

about their origins and to be able to 'filt in the gaps'

about their background.

in the past, adoption was surrounded by secreey, and
support for thosc whose lives had been affected by
adoption was very limited. This situation has now
improved and adopted people are able to find oul details
about their adoption and to make contact with their
birth relatives. The situation for birth relatives is still
limited but they are able to get information through an
intermediary, from organisations like After Adoption
Yorkshire,

* To provide an affordable search service to people
living in the Yorkshire and Humber region

* To provide advice for those who wish to carry out
their gwn search

* To provide advice, and share in the experience of the
search for those who wish to use the Search Service

* To offer support to users in their search and in any
subsequent reunion

* To provide the expertise to carry out a search for
those whn do not wish to, or are not able to carry out

a search themselves

.t facilities dowe

Access to the GRO microfiche indexes of Births,

Deaths and Marriages 1900 to 1983

Access to CD-Rom for Births, Deaths and Marriages
1984 to 2002

Access to a PC joaded with the UK Info Disc {a
database of names, and addresses compiled from last
year's K and Northern treland Electoral Registers)
Access to the GRO website, for online certificate
ordering

Information about postcode areas and registration
districts

Adopted children's register {only held at the famify
records centre in London)

Northern and Southern Irish indexes to Births,
Deaths and Marriages (these are held in Belfast and
Dublin)

Scattish indexes to Births, Deaths and Marriages
{held in Edinburgh or via the Family Records Centre
in Londen)

Overseas records

Page 108



:10j310ddns pue adapy

gjaissod se Uoos se
NOA 281U A am DUR auoydIamsue Le St aiay |

(SIYvZ) 9SLE ¥TT €L10 IBL

a08zS1

spaa

U UOLLIBW 0L L

ISNOH UOLLBW

uondas bueiso4 pue uondopy
}S9M 100|4 pIg

wea] Joddng uondopy

0o
Jeuusoyul
%

=)
S

'SAIEI2 YLIG B YA 1DBILOD 1Daup 2121)108)
0} 9]0R 218 am (159nDa UO) sallnawes

~ BAILIR YL B 1DeIIDD 0} Bulysim

SHNpe PAAOPE 10§ S3D1AIDS AIRIDOULISIUI UP

Page

SIAIRIS JHIG 21 10} YDIeas
B OXELIDDUN O] YSim oUm sy npe pajdope
10} 93UBISISSE pUR 3D1AJ3S BUDEI pallluy 2

SUBLO Y11 JI5UY TNCSE U0l ULIOIU| 3ARY
01 4Sinme Oyrasyjnpe paldope jo) bul|ssunod
119JJ0 ued ap

subLo snoA 1noge

DIOWI PAOUY O Paol 9L 198) NOA 3)I| INOA |
SSWIL LIRS 18 1eY1 3 ABW 1 ISAMOY sjuaied
LI 404 Youpas 01 1dem synpe pardope (12 10N

e
rentin
pren

o
Tt
ey




stusted yrig o) uoddns jenpiaipul pue

adnaib Js10 URS pue SAHIUIR) UG 01 3|gIssade 5
Y2IYym aDIAIDS [BUOIBR) JuspUadapuUl Ue SapIA0id
JONESIURBIO S1UY | 241YSHI0A uondopy 1oy
sueddns osje Jusweda] SaIALYG [PDOS SL |

Slusuebuele
12e0) Buntenobaual jo bunepdn uumdipy s

SADUEISU| SLLIOS Ul 3D|A1S AIRIDOULIOIUI LUE %
Buyjjasunos pue soinpe
JBLC URD oA

‘Pedwl bunse| e aaey

Jan 24} INOA UL pOtad Si) LI D2IRIDOSSE Susis
10 5312p Se Yons siebbi| uondope Jaye buo;
NOA 123P 01 ANUNUOCD [|IM SUONOWS INCA 1P}
AR s pUe NP s| pa1dope piyd e Buiiey

5
(=]
£ 3 N
%, 2 B o &
.Q@ s o O .0@
o, % = & &
\..VV J/z.,.
e
5y fjuieyaoun
fp
&.,mv. %, "o
& §3% %,
/v.o.. g 8 E %
A o= ¥
8 Z

A0S 3yl UMD INCA pue)siapun NoA buldisy

3|doad
pardope bunoA 1o) Ajenads suonesiuebio
19Y10 1IN0GE UOLBLLICIUI NOADUIAID =

pai1dope aie oym a|doad
EunoA 13410 Yiiam onol Ul noA bumnd

SPJIOD3LINOA LI UOEULIOU BuleysS =

A1015INOA 01 BUIUSISI|
:Aq djay o3 d|qe aq Aew o

‘uondope Jnoge pUelsiRpuUn 10U op

ABU) 3SNE2IQ PUNUN 318 UIP[IYD SWOSs 9gAPW
10 's138(01d .oy sudeiboloyd 10 uoneuLcul

UUIG 9ARY Z0U Op NoA 1ey) buluiedxs ynayyip
ag ues 1 jeoyds 1y Addeyun (9o NoA ayeLl

ues 541 pue AIolsiy AJe oA IN0ge Yonut Alea
SAOLY SU0-0U 1e) sjgissod s) 1| uosiad paldope
ue se dp Buimob Jndulp SSWSWos S| |

SNSSHUOLEIND

UO S2IAPE IO) SODIAIS [EUOIEIN DX LAY S|
A2M =S YL Pad [PILSA 1 USD52|00Yy pue

PIYD QUL AG U 21U D Uodope U1 {Ia SyU|

uondope 01 Bunejal
sensst Jo abuel e uo sdoyssionm pue buiures

S21|ILUEY SAICOPRE M3U 0} 2USAS [P1D0S B
syuased aandope oy dnolb uoddns Jenbai e

SADIALIS YUAM YDNOT Ul susled
SANCOPE dooy C1IS11(5Mau A|JRoA 3D1Mm] B

S| ILUES LG Y1Mm
sluatuabuelie 15e3U00 Bupenobsu yumdiay

53Nssi jo abuel e uo Loddns pue
adiape oAb 01 ‘we2| Loddng uondopy sul

A9 O ued ap

532IAISS JC Sbup!

e buidoonsp ale an ‘sawul oyoads e souesisse
10 aa1Ape U0 uoddns Buiebuo 3y ls aaladal O
saliuie) 2Andope 104 spoau a1 Jo uouboDar U

soouadadxs Bulbeuier Jaljies
J8Y) woly Buisye spasu buinuiuod pue xaiduwiced
2ARY $alIwe) aAdope wi paoeld uaup|iyAuely

Page 110



ADDENDUM B Ui )

Leeds Adoption Support Team
History:
Adopt!On S u pport 1998 PG Post Adoption Estabhshed (2P)
: 1999 - 2001 Strategic Plan — 3 years
Pfese ntat10n - Coisultanons :fi'.h staff, adopters (Post Adopton
Referance group established)
= Leaflet outlining services
F Lin th develop BF i
Vai Hales — Team Manager Adoption & L o o 56 s
Adontion SUppOT‘t Leeds SSD - Redrah Contact Register lsafiat
Lynn Buckle — Principal Caseworker Adoption g mment
Support Leeds 88D > Links witn CAMHS
July 2006 2001 - 2004  Evaluation of PCW rale using the task forge audit tool Plan
ravigad
7
diLeads L
Leeds Adoption Support Team Adoption Support 3 Year Plan
History: (2004'200?)
2004 Adoption Suppert Team Established Includes:

Professianal Staff

1 PCW (Davelopmant & Cagawark)

2 Adoption Support Workars

{1 Home & Away & Contact)

{1 Training & Adoption Support Assessment)
1 Family Adoption Advisor

Education AdvisoriCoordinator
Administrative Staff

* 1 Adoption Archivist

¥ Admin Suppont H&A

> V2 Admin Support AST

» % Admin Suppon Special Guardianship

R O R |

» Imptementing Adoption Support Regulations

+ Adoplion irierest Groups for staff

+ Pilot Bonding & Attachment with pre-schos! children
+ implement H & A Scheme

- Barnardo’s Supperted Lodgings 15+

= Training Plan — annual

+ Student Placement

» Buddy/Mentor Scheme

+ Adepters De-Stress Day

Page 111




@Leg:ﬁs{
Key Developments Achieved
Since 1999

Post Adoption Ref Group
Intar-Ageney Adoplion Support Forum
Joint work with the Adoption Clinics!/CAMHS including:
- Assgssments
- Group Work
- Training
Educational input to sehools & families
Specialist yraining for staff inciuding
— Post Adoption Counsalling - 7 modules
— Evidenge based agoption support assassment — 4 modules
— One day courses — BAAF/AAY
Contract with AAY

Key De\}elopments Achieve&i
Since 1999

Training/seminars for adopters
- Piece of Cake
- Pareming Stratagies
Day Courses
fRelaled Sy Adoplion
— Parents As Healers
- Birth Pareni Counsetling via AAY
Newsletter )
Support Groups for adopters including:
—~ Group for single carers
— Farems of Adolestents - joint initiatve with CAMAS
— Wacky Group for adopters with pre-school children
- Adopters Liatson Forum
Social Suppont Group for childran
Theraplay initiative

~4

w @

Haleeds
Examples of Financial Support

£500 grant at outset of placement

An allewanca equivalent to less of pay for a peried of ime in the
pre-order stagse to enabie carer to remain at nome

individual support worker for a child who has learning difficultias

Assistance with taxi fares tc hetp a child attend an Adoptee Social
Group - 'The Cooking Craw’

Lump sum for ice-skating lessans
Family futures assessment/private therapy

Lump sum o help towards cast of @ larger vehicle for a sibing
group

Barnardo's supponed lodgings costs
Specialist babysithing
Laundry/Cleaning Costs

st eeds
Financial Support in Adoption &
Other Permanent Placements

Regulation 8

* Provides for financial support to maintain an adoption
placement in cases where:

+ Necessary to e'nsure children can be looked after

+ Requires extra resources because of iliness, disability,
emotional or behavioural difficutties or effects of abuse

+ To enable siblings to be placed together

Regular payments must be means tested. Must take
into account other benefits payable eg, Child
Benefit, CTC DLA

Page 112



Foster Carer Adoptions

Payments confinue at the same lavel for 2 y&ars pos) orger. Without means
testing. including any fee

= Paymaents will then either ceass if children do not meet aligibility critena for
continued aflowance or continye ta be paid subject to a financial means test

In cartain casas ramunaraton {fee) can cantinue 10 be pad beyand 2 year
period ‘'whare child has exceptional needs of other axcaptional
circumnslances [Regulation 9)

Maang test for allowancas can be waived in certam cases. Decision ta
warve is basad ort specific conditions being met. These inciuda

~—  Chid meets criteria tac FOS

-~ Child placed on FPF or TG scheme
- Chid part of sibling group

- Long term L & bey Tt o

Consideration of the Adoption Suppon package 17 Foster Carery Agreey
prior te Adaption Panel matching

sgLeeds
Other Permanency Options For
Approved Carers

- Special Guardianship Orders

- Residence Orders ~ not means testad

Ongoing payments for 3G
Must be means 1estad after 2 years post ordar
£xceplion ‘where a crld naeds special care which requires graater
expenditure of resources bacause of liiness, disability, emotional difficulties
&ic’ (Regulation 6 {2) (b))

+  Decision not to means test is made by Chifdren’s Service Manager prorto
application 2nd proposal sent to the Foster Carer

Financial suppon can be given ta families :dentified as sutable 1o care
during proceedings — subject to Teans test Again may wane means tast 0
axceptional Cases

Leaving Care Seivice

ELeeds
Adoption Support Assessments

Adoptive Families

Pre-Order

1. During Adopters assessment

CPR & child to panal

Matching report

Reviewad through CC review system

Adoption Suppart staff available for consultation &
advice during assessment & planning process

Post order

;oA wom

6. 3 months curtsey call
7. 12 months visit

Post Order Support

Check eligibiiity criteria (Reg 7.2}
Assessment
Recommendsations

EalE R S

Review

Page 113



anLeeds gleeds
Adoption Support for Birth Families Adoption Support Post Order

Pre-Order/Post Order 1. Financial support subject to an assessment of need

may be payable
1. Independent Counselling via AAY offered 2. Financial means test undertaken

2. Assistance with contact matters, mainly post ordar 3. Exceptions - under £500 Team Manager, £500-£1,000
discretion of Head of Resources

4. Review Panel set up to consider complex situations
and exceptional circumstances anising fom child's
needs or housenold income of adopters

5. Payments usually are off Jump sum or time limited

Page 114



Gl abed

Adoption Support 3 Year Plan (2004 - 2007)

Updated November 2005

Addendum 9

DEVELOPMENT/ DETAIL HO TIME TASK REVISED COMMENTS
ACTION SCALE COMPLETED | TIMESCALE
REQUIRED
Disseminate Teams - Area/ | All Oct 2004 | Yes
information to staff | Fostering &
re: Adoption Adoption
Support Rolling
programme for
areas
Update Leaflets TBA 2005 Yes Jan 2006 Revise again in light of
Adoption & Childrens Act 2002
Adoption Interest Fostering & Lynn Sept Yes Poorly attended by fieldworkers.
Group Adoption 2004 Re-Launch in May 2006. Change
Officers & group to ‘Adoption Supervision /
Social Workers Discussion Group’? Possibly set
topics for each month.
Advice Line Independent | Val Sept Yes
no. required 2004
Pilot Project on Set up Multi- Lynn & Claire Material being considered,
Bonding & disciplinary preliminary thoughts.
Attachment Pre- working group. .
School (Raise at Ongoing - 2006
Leeds IAAS

Forum)




91| abed

DEVELOPMENT DETAIL HO TIME TASK REVISED COMMENTS
/ACTION SCALE | COMPLETED | TIMESCALE
REQUIRED
Home & Away - Proposal Pam & Sarah | Jan 2005 | Yes April 2006 . Revised procedures in
Service Pilot - Procedures light of Adoption &
Scheme - 10 & 2 day Childrens Act 2002
Families development Il. Further
15/09/04 advertising/targeted
recruitment
lll. Evaluation report by
March 2006
IV. Home & Away focus
group 8/2/06
Develop a service - Liaise with - Ongoing | Yes
for families/children | worker from
with disabilities in Family
conjunction with Placement
Family Placement (Adoption)
Update Adoption Lynn Buckle / | Nov 2004 | Yes Jan 2006 Revise procedures in light of
Policies & Val Hales

Procedures &
Adoption Support
Policy

Adoption & Childrens Act 2002.




L1 abed

DEVELOPMENT DETAIL WHO TIME TASK REVISED COMMENTS
/ACTION SCALE | COMPLETED | TIMESCALE
REQUIRED
Re-Visit Contact Arrange 2 day | All 29/09/04 | Yes June 2006 I. Contact database being
Policy for adoption updated by Design.
support staff to Merlene to chase for
consider Reports
implications [I. Arrange training on contact
for social workers.
Barbara, Pam & Sarah to
liaise with EDU
[ll. Re-visit policy in reference
to screening mail, look at
Sheffield model
IV. Merlene to meet
alternatively with Pam &
Sarah
Disruptions - Develop Lynn Dec 2004 | - Dec 2006
database to
monitor
disruptions
Aide memoire
& checklist
for workers
chairing
disruption

meetings




81| obed

DEVELOPMENT DETAIL HO TIME TASK REVISED COMMENTS
/ACTION SCALE | COMPLETED | TIMESCALE
REQUIRED
Continue to provide | Prepare Barbara Jan 2005 | - Feb 2006 ? Prepare annual training program
training for staff & annual training for adoptive parents to go in
adoptive families programme Spring Newsletter 2006.

[ In conjunction with EDU
devise annual program for
staff to include contact,
attachment, helping
children move

Il. Request assistance from
EDU for admin & delivery

Undertake student Claire 2007 - 2007 Discuss with EDU whether they
supetrvision Sarah can undertake long arm
Pam supervision if we deliver work
(VAL TO based training — Val to discuss.
LIAISE WITH
EDU)
Monitor Service Annual Report | Lynn/Val & July 2005 July 2006 Lesley to be asked to assist
Provision & Stats Admin Caroline in collation of stats,

Information

alongside main adoption stats —
April & Oct.




611 abed

DEVELOPMENT DETAIL HO TIME TASK REVISED COMMENTS
/ACTION SCALE | COMPLETED | TIMESCALE
REQUIRED

Introduce Await Gov. Lynn & Val Look at new Adoption

Assessment fine tuning of Placement report and revise.

Framework for all | Regs

new referrals Ongoing

Review systems for | Discuss with Lynn Ongoing Feb 2006 Pam / Sarah / Merlene to re look

recording referral Admin & at contact files and revise format.

information ESCR Team Merlene to seek costings for new
contact files.

Buddy/Mentor For Pam & Sarah | April 2006/2007 Further discussion re possible

Scheme new/isolated 2005 schemes. Pam / Claire to

adoptive contact Essex scheme. Already
parents considered Adoption UK. ??

whether a more informal
arrangement would be better.

Arrange Adopters De-stressing All Julie Pocklington to arrange a

Day day 2006 date post Feb 2 term — poss
Wednesday.

Revamp website Stuart 2005 Yes March 2006 | Revise in light of Adoption &

Childrens Act 2002.




02| abed

DEVELOPMENT DETAIL HO TIMESC TASK REVISED COMMENTS
/ACTION ALE COMPLETED | TIMESCALE
REQUIRED
Asian Adopters Liaise with Nas & worker | Jan 2005 | - July 2006 Consider using initial assessment
Support Group Fostering from Adoption workers in providing support
Officers Support Team groups for adopters. Suggest
responsible for | ? Barbara inviting Nasrat Houlton to a team
Asian meeting.
Development.
Check with
regional
Consortium.
Develop Specific Barbara & Jan 2006 | June 2006 Pam & Sarah to look at material
Information packs | subjects eg Pam in the PACT course & chapters
for Adoptive Contact from the reference books.
Parents /welfare
benefits,
explaining
adoption,
possibly age

related.




DEVELOPMENT DETAIL WHO TIMESC TASK REVISED COMMENTS
/ACTION ALE COMPLETED | TIMESCALE
REQUIRED
Develop Services Possible “drop- | All Ongoing Re look at service for birth
for birth relatives in” session at a parents 2 development day.
neutral venue
Develop Services | Services to All
for Adult Adoptees | be decided - Ongoing
link with AAY

12| obed

Development Day Input from

for Adoption Team | Adoption
Support Team
using
appropriate
materials from
the ACE/PACT
course.




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 122



€21 abed

What is the Yorkshire Adoption
Consortium?

The consortium brings together all adoption
agencies in the region with the aim of
increasing the possibilities of finding
families for children in the area by linking
them with approved adopters.

The Consortium has a Co-ordinator who
maintains a database holding information on
children awaiting adoption in the region and
adopters approved to adopt.

Information on Children.

When a child has been identified as needing
an adoptive placement and the court has
agreed with this decision their details will
be sent to the consortium co-ordinator by
the child’s social worker.

What happens next?

The co-ordinator enters the child’s details
onto the database and checks to see if any
families are available that would match with
the child. A list of up to 6 possible families
will be drawn up. This will be sent to the
social worker who is responsible for finding
a family for the child.

Once the social worker has decided on a
first choice of family they will contact the
family’s social worker. The family’s social
worker will then forward details of the
child onto the family. If they feel positive
about a potential match a meeting will be
arranged with the child’s social worker for
further discussion before a match is agreed
by the adoption panel.

APPENDIX 2

Information on families.

Adopters details are sent to the consortium
as soon as they are approved providing that
the adopters have consented to this.

When are families available to be
considered by the consortium?

Families are available to other members in
the consortium after 3 months from
approval ( or earlier if requested to do so by
the agency).

The consortium co-ordinator will enter the
details of the families as soon as they are
received and will run a check to see if there
are children who could be matched with this
family. If there is a possible match the co-
ordinator will notify the family’s social
worker directly.

What about financing placements?

Placements are made under the terms and
conditions of the child’s agency. This
includes payments, grants and allowances. It
is the responsibility of the child’s social
worker and the family’s worker to clarify
the details in each placement.



v ebed

Contact Details:-

Debbie Church
Consortium Co-ordinator
c/o NCH

11 Queen Square
Leeds LS2 8A]J

Tel: 0113 2430027
neyac@nch.org.uk

Members of the Consortium
include:-

Local Authorities:-

Leeds, Bradford, Calderdale, Wakefield,
Kirklees, North Yorkshire, Barnsley,
Hull, York, East Riding, Sheffield, NE
Lincs, Doncaster, N. Lincs

Voluntary agencies that contribute
families for inclusion on the consortium
database include:-

NCH
Catholic Care
Adoption Barnardos Yorkshire

Associate Members are;

BAAF, After Adoption Yorkshire &
Adoption Register for England & Wales

C )yorkshire

APPENDIX 2

C )yorkshire

Information for adopters

Working together for children
needing adoption



cpyorkshire

adoption consortium

What is the Yorkshire
Adoption Consortium?

The consortium brings
together all adoption agencies
in the region and the aim is to
increase the possibilities of
matching for children and
families in the area.

The Consortium has a
Co-ordinator who maintains a
database holding information
on children awaiting adoption
and adopters approved to
adopt in the region.

Information on Children

Information about children
for when the agency has an
adoption plan ( following
adoption panel where a best
Interests decision has been
made) will be sent to the
consortium administrator
within one month after the
panel or date of the final
hearing.

The information will be
submitted to the consortium
Co-ordinator using the
National Adoption Register
Form for children. The forms
can be sent by the social
worker via the post or email.

What happens next?

The Consortium co-ordinator
enters the details on the
database and checks to see
what families are available

that would match with the
child. A list of up to 6
matches will be drawn up.
This will be sent to the social
worker acting as a family
finder for the child, who may
be the child’s social worker or
a family placement worker.

It is the responsibility of the
agency workers to exchange
Form E’s and F’s and other
information. The child’s
family finder will let the co-
ordinator know when a match
has been identified and
approved by adoption panel.

Information on families.

Adopters details are sent the
consortium as soon as they
are approved providing that
the adopters have consented
to this.

Adopters details will be
submitted by the agency using
the National Adoption
register Form within 4 weeks
of approval.

Families are available to other
members in the consortium
after 3 months from approval
(or earlier if requested to do
so by the agency).

The consortium co-ordinator
will enter the details of the
families and will run a check
to see if there are children
who could be matched with
this family. If there is a match

Page 125

the co-ordinator will notify
the social workers directly.

What about financing
placements?

Interagency matches via local
authorities in the consortium
are made on a no charge
basis. However, the co-
ordinator will monitor the
level of use by each agency
and the maximum debit for
any agency will be —10 and
anything beyond will incur an
inter agency fee. If the agency
was in credit by 10 it would
be expected that a charge
would be made. Voluntary
agencies are advertised
through the consortium but
are only available if an
interagency fee can be paid.

Placements are made under
the terms and conditions of
the child’s agency. This
includes payments, grants and
allowances. It is the
responsibility of the child’s
social worker and the family’s
worker to clarify the details in
each placement.

Contact Details :-

Debbie Church
Consortium Co-ordinator
c/o NCH

11 Queens Square

Leeds LS2 8A)

Tel: 0113 2430027



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 126



Statistics for Quarter 1 - 4 from 01/04/03 — 31/03/04

Families Placed

In house Consortium | Outside Total No. of
Agencies families
placed
Barnsley 0 0 0 0
Bradford 5 3 0 8
Calderdale 4 2 0 6
Doncaster 0 0 0 0
East Riding 0 0 0 0
Hull 16 4 2 22
Kirklees 3 1 1 5
Leeds 42 0 1 43
North Lincs 0 0 0 0
NE Lincs 0 0 0 0
North Yorks 8 5 2 15
Sheffield 0 0 0 0
Wakefield 7 2 0 9
York 3 3 2 8
Within Outside of
Consortium | consortium
Barnardo’s 2 5 7
Catholic Care 0 0 0
NCH 4 12 16
Children Placed
In house | Consortium | Outside Total No. of
agencies Children placed
Barnsley 0 0 0 0
Bradford 7 2 4 13
Calderdale 4 2 10 16
Doncaster 0 0 0 0
East Riding 0 0 0 0
Hull 18 3 11 32
Kirklees 3 5 3 11
Leeds 54 1 8 63
North Lincs 0 0 0 0
NE Lincs 0 0 0 0
North 9 3 0 12
Yorkshire
Sheffield 0 0 0 0
Wakefield 9 3 3 15
York 3 5 10 18

Page 127




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 128



Statistics for Quarter 1 - 4 from 01/04/04 — 31/03/05

Families Placed

In house Consortium | Outside Total No. of
Agencies families
placed
Barnsley 5 1 1 7
Bradford 19 0 0 19
Calderdale 5 2 0 7
East Riding 11 0 1 12
Hull 14 2 2 18
Kirklees 14 4 1 19
Leeds 36 1 0 37
NE Lincs 0 0 1 1
North 14 3 1 18
Yorkshire
Sheffield 6 0 0 6
Wakefield 10 1 0 11
York 4 3 3 10
Within Outside of
Consortium | consortium
Barnardo’s 1 4 5
Catholic Care 4 10 14
NCH 2 8 10
Children Placed
In house | Consortium | Outside Total No. of
agencies Children placed
Barnsley 5 0 12 17
Bradford 22 4 13 39
Calderdale 6 5 8 19
East Riding 13 0 7 20
Hull 20 2 16 38
Kirklees 17 2 15 34
Leeds 55 2 6 63
NE Lincs 0 0 0 1
North 15 3 5 23
Yorkshire
Sheffield 7 0 5 12
Wakefield 13 1 10 24
York 6 2 7 15

Page 129




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 130



Statistics for Quarter 1 - 4 from 01/04/05 — 31/03/06

Families Placed

In house Consortium | Outside Total No. of
Agencies families
placed
Barnsley 12 4 0 16
Bradford 25 3 3 31
Calderdale 6 2 1 9
Doncaster 0 3 0 3
East Riding 17 0 1 18
Hull 13 3 1 17
Kirklees 17 7 0 24
Leeds 42 3 0 45
North Lincs 0 2 0 2
NE Lincs 2 7 2 11
North Yorks 15 3 0 18
Sheffield 25 2 2 29
Wakefield 7 5 0 12
York 1 4 0 5
Within Outside of
Consortium | consortium
Barnardo’s 4 4 8
Catholic Care 2 3 5
NCH 3 8 11
Children Placed
In house | Consortium | Outside Total No. of
agencies Children placed
Barnsley 13 1 6 20
Bradford 32 4 5 41
Calderdale 8 10 3 21
Doncaster 0 4 5 9
East Riding 20 4 5 29
Hull 16 4 17 37
Kirklees 19 7 8 34
Leeds 47 6 13 66
North Lincs 0 2 0 2
NE Lincs 2 4 12 18
North 18 3 10 31
Yorkshire
Sheffield 30 0 29 59
Wakefield 7 2 9 18
York 1 7 7 15

Page 131




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 132



Statistics over the last 3 years — highlighting Leeds
Families

Families currently on database — 36
Out of this 20 are live and 16 are currently on hold

In total there are 207 families on the database (not including Leeds)
Out of this 207 76 are currently on hold.

The table below shows the number of children the families currently on the database
are approved for.

Agency 1 1/2 2 2/3 1/2/3 Total
families

NCH 4 9 2 15
Barnardos 5 3 1 9
Catholic Care | 2 6 1 9
Barnsley 7 2 9
Bradford 16 1 2 19
Calderdale 4 3 1 8
Doncaster 8 4 2 14
East Riding 11 3 1 15
Hull 8 1 9
Kirklees 20 5 2 27
Leeds 31 4 1 36
NE Lincs 9 1 10
North lincs 5 1 6
North Yorks | 11 8 19
Sheffield 9 4 4 17
Wakefield 9 2 11
York 5 1 4 10

Since the database began recording data in Feb 03 Leeds have entered 159 families
Out of this 11 withdrew.

Total number of families entered (not including leeds) over the last 3 years is 587 and
out of this 52 withdrew.

Page 133




Children -

There are currently 301 children on the database (not including Leeds) please see

below for the breakdown.

Agency Live On Hold Total
Barnsley 10 8 18
Bradford 18 23 41
Calderdale 9 9 18
Doncaster 17 7 24
East Riding 7 5 12
Hull 15 25 40
Kirklees 21 17 38
Leeds 7 25 32
NE Lincs 0 6 6
North Lincs 3 3 6
North Yorks 7 2 9
Sheffield 36 28 64
Wakefield 13 7 20
York 2 3 5

Out of these the following are sibling groups currently on the database —

Agency Sibling group of 2 Sibling group of 3
Barnsley 3 0
Bradford 6 0
Calderdale 2 1
Doncaster 2 0
East Riding 2 1
Hull 2 3
Kirklees 8 1
Leeds 1 0
NE Lincs 1 0
North Lincs 2

Sheffield 12 2
York 1 0
Total 45 9

Page 134




Agencies Scorecard

How balance is calculated

If an agency puts in a family = +1
If an agency takes out a family = -1

Pre 1999 Balance

|Agency Balance

Leeds +1

Bradford -3

Kirklees +2

York 0

North Yorks 0

Wakefield 0

Hull 0

Calderdale 0

Summary of figures

|Agency Families Put in Families taken out Balance

Leeds 13 21 -7
Bradford 13 19 -9
Kirklees 19 16 +3
York 19 20 -1
North Yorks 17 10 +7
Wakefield 11 12 -1
Hull 13 8 +5
Calderdale 12 21 -9
Barnsley 6 4 +2
East Riding 2 3 -1
Sheffield 2 1 +1
NE Lincs 11 5 +6
Doncaster 4 7 -3
North Lincs 10 3 +7

Page 135




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 136



Agenda ltem 10

Originator:  Kate Arscott

Tel: 247 4189

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development

Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)

Date: 7 September 2006

Subject: Youth Services

Electoral Wards Affected: Specific Implications For:

Ethnic minorities

Women

Disabled people

Narrowing the Gap

1.0
1.1

1.2

1.3
1.4

2.0
2.1

3.0
3.1
3.2

Introduction

At the board’s first meeting in June, members agreed to carry out an inquiry into youth
services in Leeds as one of their major pieces of work this year.

The board appointed a small working group to draft terms of reference for the inquiry.
The working group met with the Head of Youth Service on 27" July to discuss the
potential scope for the inquiry.

The draft of the terms of reference have been attached for members’ consideration.

In order to manage the board’s work programme effectively, without unnecessarily
delaying this inquiry, it is proposed that an additional meeting of the board be
scheduled for Thursday 2 November, to accommodate the first two sessions of the
inquiry.

Views of the director and executive member

The Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules Guidance Notes also require that, before
embarking on an inquiry, the board seeks and considers the views of the relevant
director and executive member. These views will need to be incorporated into the terms
of reference.

Recommendations
The board is requested to agree the terms of reference for the inquiry.

The board is requested to agree to hold an additional meeting on 2 November.

Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 138



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) Inquiry

Youth Services

Draft terms of reference

Introduction

At the first meeting of the Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) in June
2006, members agreed that they wished to look at youth services
across Leeds as one of their major inquiries for the coming year.

In order to decide on an appropriate and manageable focus for the

inquiry, the board commissioned a small working group from amongst
its membership to scope the inquiry. The workinggroup met with the
council’s Head of Youth Service on 27"

The group had a wide ranging
of developments in the-cotqcil’

government pyblication Xodth Matters: The Next Steps.
In order to provide a clear focus for the board’s work, the working group
decided to recommend that the inquiry took as its end point the
question ‘What should Leeds City Council include in the youth offer that
it will have to publish next year?’

In order to answer that question it was felt that the inquiry should look
at current provision and how it varies across the city, in order to build a
vision for the future. This would include different service providers and
partners as well as different types of targeted and universal provision.
The inquiry also needs to consider what young people want and
expect from youth services as fundamental to mapping future provision.

The board hopes that this inquiry will assist the council in responding
successfully to the Youth Matters agenda and ensuring that the 5
outcomes for children and young people are embedded in the youth
offer.

Page 139



2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.0

5.1

Scope of the inquiry

The purpose of the inquiry is to make an assessment of, and where
appropriate make recommendations on, the following areas:

e What can be learnt from the existing patterns of provision across
the city?

e What do young people want and expect from youth services in
Leeds?

e What should Leeds City Council include in the youth offer that it will
have to publish next year?

Comments of the relevant director and executive member

In line with scrutiny board procedure rule 11.4 the views of the relevant
director and executive member have been sought and have been
incorporated where appropriate into these terms of reference. Full
details are available on request from the scrutin ort unit.

Timetable for the inquiry

It is envisaged that [ [ essions. The
inqui il ce i icati rt setting out

such as visits \ang opportunities to meet directly with young people and
obtain their views.

The length of the inquiry is subject to change in the light of emerging
evidence.
Submission of evidence

Session One — 2" November 2006

To consider general background information on:

e Mapping of existing youth service provision across Leeds
e Analysis of the differences in provision between areas

e The balance of targeted and universal services

e The availability of facilities for non-organised activities

e Update on implementing the Youth Service Post Inspection Action
Plan

e How young people are consulted and how they influence service
development

e Details of the requirement to produce a ‘youth offer’
e The Youth Capital Fund and Youth Opportunities Fund

Page 140



5.2

5.3

54

5.5

Session Two — 2" November 2006

To consider information on existing models of partnership including
e The Leeds Youth Work Partnership
e Local youth networks including the one operating in Morley

To consider information on the influence of area management on
patterns of youth provision

Working Group activities

Exact activities to be confirmed. Will include discussions with young
people (Youth Council, ROAR), visits to activities and possible visit(s)
with young people to facilities in other areas.

Session Three — 14%@Cem¥r\>&0

s involved'in delivering

rproviders

To consider further examples of partnership working
e The Local Area Agreement Year 9 project

To consider any issues arising from sessions one and two

Session Four — 14" December 2006

To consider members’ findings from the working group activities

To discuss the issues arising from the working group activities with
officers

To consider the board’s emerging conclusions and recommendations in

response to the question ‘What does Leeds City Council want to
include in the youth offer that it will have to publish next year?’

Page 141



6.0
6.1

Witnhesses

The following witnesses have been identified as possible contributors
to the Inquiry:

City Council Youth Service staff

Leeds Youth Work Partnership (LYWP) representatives

Voluntary, community and faith sector organisations involved in
youth provision (to be coordinated through LYWP and Leeds Voice
Forum)

School representatives

Connexions

Leeds Youth Offending Service

Young people (including Youth Council and ROAR)

Area Committee / Management representation

“@ii

Page 142



Agenda ltem 11

Originator: Kate Arscott

Tel: 247 4189

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development

Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)

Date: 7 September 2006

Subject: Work Programme

Electoral Wards Affected: Specific Implications For:

Ethnic minorities

Women

Disabled people

Narrowing the Gap

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

Introduction

A copy of the board’s draft work programme is attached for members’ consideration
(appendix 1). The draft programme reflects the issues identified at the board’s first two
meetings in June and July.

Work programming

Attached to this report are the current Forward Plan of Key Decisions (appendix 2)
and the minutes of the council’s Executive Board meetings held on 5™ July and 16™
August (appendix 3), which will give members an overview of current activity within
the board’s portfolio area.

Recommendation

The Board is requested to agree the attached work programme subject to any
decisions made at today’s meeting.

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 144



G| obed

ltem

Description

Notes

Meeting date: 12" October 2006 - The deadline for reports for this meeting is 10.00am on Tuesday 26" September

Monitoring meeting

At this meeting the board will consider progress
reports on a number of initiatives and services
including the following:

Children’s Services

Transition

School Admissions and Appeals

Extended Schools

Safeguarding Children

Consultation toolkit

The board agreed to take this approach in June 2006,
as a way of maintaining an overview across its portfolio

Meeting date: 16" November 2006 - The deadline for reports for this meeting is 10.00am on Tuesday 315 October

Adoption

To receive evidence as Sessions 3 and 4 of the
board’s inquiry into Adoption

The board agreed the terms of reference for this inquiry
at its July meeting

Youth Services

To receive evidence as Sessions 1 and 2 of the
board’s inquiry into Youth Services

NB An additional meeting may be arranged for the
consideration of this item

The board is due to agree the terms of reference for this
inquiry at its September meeting

Inquiry 3

To agree the terms of reference for the board’s third
major inquiry of 2006/07




9| obed

ltem Description

Notes

Meeting date: 14" December 2006 - The deadline for reports for this meeting is 10.00am on Tuesday 28" November

Youth Services To receive evidence as Sessions 3 and 4 of the

board’s inquiry into Youth Services

The board is due to agree the terms of reference for this
inquiry at its September meeting

Children and Young | To discuss the emerging issues likely to be

A final draft will be presented to the board’s February

People Plan incorporated into the plan. meeting
Secondary To receive a progress report on implementation of In line with recommendation 14 of the inquiry report
Achievement the board’s recommendations published in April 2006

Meeting date: 11" January 2007 - The deadline for reports for this meeting is 10.00am on Tuesday 19" December

Recruitment and Retention
of Children’s Social

To receive an update on the implementation
of the recommendations following the board’s

Workers inquiry

Children Act To receive an update on the implementation
of the Children Act 2004 in Leeds.

Adoption To approve the board’s final inquiry report

following its inquiry into Adoption




/v obed

ltem

Description

Notes

Meeting date: 8" February 2007 - The deadline for reports for this meeting is 10.00am on Tuesday 23" January

Youth Services

To agree the board’s final inquiry report on Youth
Services

Children and Young
People Plan

To discuss a final draft of the plan.

Inquiry 3

To receive evidence as Sessions 1 and 2 of the
board’s inquiry

The board is due to agree the terms of reference for this
inquiry at its November meeting

Meeting date: 8" March 2007 - The deadline for reports for this meeting is 10.00am on Tuesday 20" February

Inquiry 3 To receive evidence as Sessions 3 and 4 of the The board is due to agree the terms of reference for this
board’s inquiry inquiry at its November meeting
Adoption To receive the formal response of the Social

Services department to the board’s inquiry report on
Adoption




81| obed

ltem

Description

Notes

Meeting date: 19™ April 2007 - The deadline for reports for this meeting is 10.00am on Tuesday 3" April

Youth Services

To receive a formal response to the board’s final
inquiry report into Youth Services

Annual Report

To agree the board’s contribution to the annual
scrutiny report

Children Act

To receive an update on the implementation of the
Children Act 2004 in Leeds

Final Inquiry Reports

To agree the board’s final inquiry report following its
third major inquiry of the year




6771 obed

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS

EXTRACT RELATING TO THE SCRUTINY BOARD (CHILDREN’S SERVICES)

For the period 1 August 2006 to 30 November 2006

Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected Proposed Documents to be Lead Officer
Date of Consultation Considered by Decision (To whom
Decision Maker representations should
be made)
The former Royal Park Executive Board 16 Aug Ward Members and Area | The report to be issued to Director of
Primary School 2006 Management Committee | the decision maker with the | Development

To note the outcome of the
work undertaken to
investigate the viability of
implementing proposals
considered at November
2003 Executive Board
meeting, and to seek
approval for proposals in
respect of marketing the
property against a brief
requiring the inclusion of
community elements and on
the premise the Council will
retain long term control of the
property by granting a long
leasehold interest.

agenda for the meeting




0G| abed

Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected Proposed Documents to be Lead Officer
Date of Consultation Considered by Decision (To whom
Decision Maker representations should
be made)
Otley Prince Henry's Executive Board 20 Sep Consultation ongoing The report to be issued to Chief Executive of
Grammar School 2006 with DfES the decision maker with the | Education Leeds

To seek approval to inject a
capital receipt generated from
the proposed sale of the
former Newall Primary School
into the Capital Programme
and to incur expenditure in
respect of capital investment
at Otley Prince Henry’s
Grammar School.

agenda for the meeting

Review of Primary
Provision in Boston Spa
Primary Planning Area
Seeking agreement on the
way forward for primary
provision in the Boston Spa
area and any relevant
statutory processes.

Executive Board

20 Sep
2006

Informal consultation

None.

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds

Review of Primary
Provision in Alwoodley
Primary Planning Area
To seek agreement on the
way forward for structure of
primary provision in
Alwoodley and any relevant
statutory processes.

Executive Board

20 Sep
2006

Formal consultation
Autumn 2005

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds




1G| obed

Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected Proposed Documents to be Lead Officer
Date of Consultation Considered by Decision (To whom
Decision Maker representations should
be made)
East Garforth Primary Executive Board 20 Sep Consultation ongoing The report to be issued to Chief Executive of

School

To seek approval to the ring
fencing of a capital receipt
generated from the sale of an
area of surplus school land.
Approval will also be sought
to inject the capital receipt
into the capital programme
and to incur expenditure in
respect of the construction of
a new nursery, changing
rooms, and an office link
between the existing school
buildings, and to carry out
improvements to the school
playing fields at East Garforth
Primary School.

2006

with DfES

the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Education Leeds

Review of Primary
Provision in Richmond Hill
Primary Planning Area
Agreement on the way
forward for primary provision
in the Richmond Hill area and
any relevant statutory
processes

Executive Board

20 Sep
2006

The report to be issued to
the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Chief Executive of
Education Leeds




2G| obed

Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected Proposed Documents to be Lead Officer
Date of Consultation Considered by Decision (To whom
Decision Maker representations should
be made)
Structure of Children's Executive Board 20 Sep The report to be issued to Director of Children’s
Services Unit 2006 the decision maker with the | Services
To approve the proposed agenda for the meeting
structure of the Children’s
Services Unit.
Children's Services Executive Board 20 Sep The report to be issued to Director of Children’s
progress report 2006 the decision maker with the | Services
To note the report updating agenda for the meeting
on progress with regard to
Children’s Services.
Commissioning Strategy - | Executive Board 20 Sep The report to be issued to Director of Children’s
Children's Services 2006 the decision maker with the | Services
To approve a agenda for the meeting
commissioning strategy for
the delivery of Children’s
Services in Leeds.
Children's Services Annual | Executive Board 18 Oct 2006 The report to be issued to Director of Children’s

Performance Assessment
To note the Annual
Performance Assessment
for Children’s Services

the decision maker with the
agenda for the meeting

Services




€G| abed

NOTES

Key decisions are those executive decisions:

Executive Board Portfolios

Central and Corporate
Development

City Services
Neighbourhoods and Housing
Leisure

Children’s Services (Support)
Children’s Services (Lead)
Social Care and Health
Leader of the Green Group
Leader of the Labour Group

Advisory Member

which result in the authority incurring expenditure or making savings over £500,000 per annum, or
are likely to have a significant effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards

Executive Member

Councillor Mark Harris
Councillor Andrew Carter
Councillor Steve Smith
Councillor John Leslie Carter
Councillor John Procter
Councillor Richard Harker
Councillor R Brett
Councillor Peter Harrand
Councillor David Blackburn
Councillor Keith Wakefield
Councillor Judith Blake



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 154



20

21

22

23

EXECUTIVE BOARD
WEDNESDAY, 5TH JULY, 2006
PRESENT: Councillor M Harris in the Chair

Councillors A Carter, R Harker, D Blackburn,
R Brett, J L Carter, P Harrand, J Procter,
S Smith and K Wakefield

Councillor J Blake — non-voting advisory member

Exclusion of Public
RESOLVED - That the public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of appendices 1 and 2 to the report referred to in minute 30.

Declaration of Interests

Councillor A Carter declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the item
relating to Abbey Mills and St Ann’s Mills (Minute 32) on the basis that, in the
event that the mill buildings were offered for sale on the open market then a
client of his company may make an offer to purchase. He also requested that
it be recorded that he declared that he was supporting officers in a complaint
to the Standards Board with regard to an individual member and he wished to
avoid any perception that consideration of this report may be influenced by
that fact.

Councillors Wakefield and Smith declared personal interests in the item
relating to the Commissioning Plan for Learning Disability Day Services
(Minute 24) as non-executive directors of the East and South Leeds PCTs
respectively.

Councillor Brett declared a personal interest in the item relating to the future
of Leeds ALMOs (Minute 30) as a board member of South East Leeds
Homes.

Minutes
RESOLVED — That the minutes of the meeting held on 14" June 2006 be
approved.

CHILDREN'S SERVICES

Improving Corporate Parenting in Leeds

The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report outlining proposals for
the Council’s arrangements to fulfil its responsibility as the Corporate Parent
of all Looked After Children in Leeds, including a Looked After Children’s
guarantee and a proposed review/monitoring process.

RESOLVED - That the proposals contained in the report, and the resource
implications arising from them, be approved.

Minutes approved at the meeting
held on Wednesday, 16th August, 2006

Page 155



24

25

26

ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE

Commissioning Plan for Learning Disability Day Services

The Chief Social Services Officer submitted a report on the need to
modernise learning disability day service provision in Leeds and presented
the plan developed by the Joint Commissioning Service setting out proposals
for further detailed consideration to develop day care services for learning
disability.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That approval be given to the plan for day services as outlined in the
report and to the development of a capital and revenue business plan
to modernise day service provision for adults with learning disability in
line with the principles outlined in the report and the Commissioning
Strategy for Day Services.

(b)  That a programme of intensive local consultations with stakeholders
and Ward Members be undertaken to ensure local plans reflect their
concerns.

(c) That further reports be brought to this Board as the change programme
is rolled out.

(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter).

CENTRAL AND CORPORATE

The Council Plan 2006/07

Further to minute 5 of the meeting held on 14" June 2006, the Chief Officer
(Executive Support) submitted a report presenting the completed Council Plan
back to the Board as a final document.

RESOLVED - That the final Council Plan, as published by the statutory
deadline of 30™ June 2006, be received and endorsed.

Annual Efficiency Statement 2005/06

The Director of Corporate Services submitted a report on the Council’s
proposed Backward Looking Annual Efficiency Statement for submission to
the Department for Communities and Local Government by 6" July 2006.

RESOLVED - That the contents of the report be noted together with the
decision of the Leader, the Chief Executive and the Director of Corporate
Services to approve the Annual Efficiency Statement — Backward Look
2005/06 for submission to the Department for Communities and Local
Government by 6™ July 2006.

Minutes approved at the meeting
held on Wednesday, 16th August, 2006

Page 156



27

28

29

30

Treasury Management Annual Report 2005/06

The Director of Corporate Services submitted a report on Treasury
Management for 2005/06, as required under the Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities.

RESOLVED - That the outturn position for 2005/06 be noted.

CITY SERVICES

Development of Primary School Catering Counter and Service Provision
The Director of City Services submitted a report on a proposal to refurbish
primary school dining counter and service facilities run by the Catering
Services.

RESOLVED - That the Project Brief be approved as presented, that approval
be given to the injection of £500,000 into the Capital Programme and
expenditure in the same amount be authorised.

NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING

The Use of Final and Initial Demolition Notices

The Director of Neighbourhoods and Housing submitted a report on the
purpose of Initial and Final Demolition Notices as introduced by the Housing
Act 2004 and their potential to assist in relation to the management of
regeneration initiatives and development opportunities and to prevent abuses
of the existing right to buy legislation.

RESOLVED - That the report be noted and that the Director of
Neighbourhoods and Housing be authorised, in consultation with the Director
of Legal and Democratic Services, to issue Initial and Final Demolition
Notices.

The Future of Arms Length Management Organisations for Housing in
Leeds

The Director of Neighbourhoods and Housing submitted a report on the
conclusions of the review of ALMOs in Leeds, detailing the background to the
review and assessing the options of one ALMO, two ALMOs or one of two
combinations of three ALMO’s.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That the preferred options for the future of ALMOs in Leeds are the one
ALMO option and the three ALMO option which would bring together,
Leeds North East and East (to include all of EASEL), Leeds South East
and South and Leeds West and North West, both options to have local
panels.

(b)  That these options be put to tenants in a city wide ballot of all tenants.

(c) That the preference of this Board is for the 3 ALMO option.

Minutes approved at the meeting
held on Wednesday, 16th August, 2006

Page 157



31

32

(d)  That the principle of local panels be agreed and that officers bring a
further report on the detailed workings of local panels and governance
arrangements for the main Board(s).

EASEL: Outcome of Phase 1 Strategic Development Agreement
Negotiations

Further to minute 174 of the meeting of the Board held on 14™ December
2005, the Director of Neighbourhoods and Housing and the Director of
Development submitted a joint report on the results of the negotiation period
with Bellway PLC, with particular reference to the Phase 1 Strategic
Development Agreement and on proposed next steps in the EASEL
procurement process.

Following consideration of appendices 1 and 2 to the report, designated as
exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) it was:

RESOLVED -

(@)  That the EASEL Project Board, through the Deputy Chief Executive,
and the Directors for Neighbourhoods and Housing and Development
be authorised :-

(i) To accept, subject to contract and the resolution of the
outstanding cost items, the commercial terms offered by Bellway
PLC for the EASEL Phase 1 sites as described in the submitted
report.

(ii) To delegate the award of the contract to Bellway PLC for the
Phase 1 sites, only when progress has been made on the Joint
Venture arrangements, as specified in the Preferred Bidder
letter.

(b)  That a further report on progress of negotiations on the Joint Venture
arrangements be brought to the September meeting of this Board.

(c) That in the event of any significant change in the commercial offer from
Bellway to the detriment of the Council, a further report on the options
for the next steps in the procurement process be brought back to this
Board for further consideration.

Abbey Mills and St Ann's Mills, Kirkstall

Referring to minute 147 of the meeting of the Board held on 15" December
2004, the Director of Development submitted a report on further work
undertaken on the option preferred by the Board under that minute. The
report identified a forecast increased cost in delivering the preferred option but
indicated that it was still deliverable. The report also introduced an alternative
option, as sponsored by a ward member, for the long term use of St Ann’s
Mills for leisure/community purposes in connection with Kirkstall Valley Park
and the West Leeds Country Park, with short to medium term use as a
community punishment centre and for the retention of Abbey Mills in Council
ownership as a possible mixed use development following minor repairs.

Minutes approved at the meeting
held on Wednesday, 16th August, 2006

Page 158



The report presented the available options as being:-

(i)

(ii)

(vi)

Do nothing/minimum investment option on both sites. This option
might facilitate the proposal put forward by the Ward Member but
would not address the significant deterioration in the buildings or the
need for quality employment units in Kirkstall. It would not, therefore
meet the key objectives of the Council.

Sell both sites. This option would provide significant funding to
support the Capital Programme and would, over time, through third
party investment, restore the buildings to their former glory. It would
not, however, guarantee that employment units were retained in
Kirkstall. Notwithstanding this a lease to a third party or partner could
satisfy this requirement (see option (v) and (vi) below).

Identify the required capital from the Mainline Capital Programme to
deliver the original preferred option. Given other pressures this was
not felt to be likely.

Await the outcome of the bid to Yorkshire Forward for £3m of funding.
If successful, such a sum of money combined with a capital receipt
from the disposal of Abbey Mills, would enable a scheme to be
delivered at St Ann’s Mills.

Seek to formalise a partnership with one of the private sector providers
of incubator units. Early discussions with these providers suggest that
they have the capital to invest in St Ann’s Mills subject to them
receiving a satisfactory share of rental income. Within such a
partnership the influence of the Council over lettings policy and
management of the units may be restricted.

Include one or both of Abbey/St Ann’s Mills in the greater small
industrial unit portfolio for which a partner is currently being sought. If
the two sites are not seen by the prospective partners as sufficiently
attractive in their own right then incorporation into the greater small
industrial unit portfolio for discussion with potential partners might be
more appropriate.

The report noted that none of the above options precluded the Council from
also pursuing the service objectives as set down by the Ward Member, albeit
that under some options the specific use of the St Ann’s Mills building would
not be possible.

The Ward Member attended the meeting and presented the alternative option
sponsored by him as a ward member and answered questions put by
Members of the Board.

Minutes approved at the meeting
held on Wednesday, 16th August, 2006

Page 159



RESOLVED -

(a)

(b)

That the key objectives of the exercise as previously approved by the
Board and as set out in paragraph 2.4 of the submitted report be
endorsed.

That the outcome of the bid to Yorkshire Forward for capital funding for
St Ann’s Mills be awaited. If this is successful, then officers be
required to bring back a further report to this Board outlining the details
of any proposal.

That should the bid to Yorkshire Forward be unsuccessful then officers
be instructed to formally seek a private sector partner for the proposals
and to then report back to this Board.

That should no suitable private sector partner be identified for this
specific proposal, St Ann’s Mills be included in the greater small
industrial unit portfolio for which a private sector partner is currently
being sought.

That the revised planning brief for Abbey Mills attached at Appendix J
to the report be approved.

That Abbey Mills be marketed so as to determine its value more
accurately for use in a future, more detailed project justification.

That the service aspirations outlined by the Ward Member in Appendix
F and summarised in section 6 of the report be noted and that the
possibility of them being delivered, other than through the use of the St
Ann’s Mills building, be the subject of further discussions and
investigations.

(Having declared a personal and prejudicial interest in this matter Councillor A
Carter left the meeting during consideration of this matter).

DATE OF PUBLICATION 7™ July 2006
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN 14™ July 2006

(Scrutiny Support will notify relevant Directors of any items Called In by
12.00 noon on 17" July 2006

Minutes approved at the meeting
held on Wednesday, 16th August, 2006

Page 160



33

34

35

36

37

EXECUTIVE BOARD
WEDNESDAY, 16TH AUGUST, 2006
PRESENT: Councillor M Harris in the Chair

Councillors D Blackburn, R Brett, A Carter,
J L Carter, R Harker, J Procter and
K Wakefield

Substitute Member
Under the terms of Executive Procedure 2.3 Councillor R Lewis was invited to
attend the meeting on behalf of Councillor Blake.

Exclusion of Public

RESOLVED - That the public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of Appendix 1 to the report referred to in minute 37 and
Appendix 1 to the report referred to in minute 50 on the grounds that it is
likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of
the proceedings, that if members of the public were present there would be
disclosure to them of exempt information or confidential information, defined
in Access to Information Rules as indicated in the minute.

Declaration of Interests
Councillor J L Carter declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the item
relating to Adel Primary School (minute 38) as a governor of the school.

Councillors D Blackburn, J L Carter and Harker declared personal interests in
the item relating to Leeds Grand Theatre (minute 45) as members of its board
of management.

Minutes

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 6" July
2006 be approved and that those of the Access to Information Appeals
Committee held on 19" and 20™ June 2006 be noted.

DEVELOPMENT

Deputation to Council - Disposal of Drighlington Old School and Land
The Director of Development submitted a report in response to the deputation
to Council by the Drighlington Conservation Group regarding lack of
consultation on the disposal of Drighlington Old School and land.

Following consideration of Appendix 1 to the report designated exempt under

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(1) and circulated at the meeting, it
was

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 20th September, 2006

Page 161



38

39

RESOLVED - That the Board notes:

(a)  the concerns expressed in the deputation from Drighlington
Conservation Group

(b)  the consultation which has taken place to date

(c) that the petition from Drighlington residents did receive due
consideration from officers and the Executive Member for
Development, but that on balance the view was taken that it was
necessary to progress the disposal in order to deliver the Primary
School Review programme

(d)  that representatives of Drighlington Parish Council will have a further
formal opportunity to submit any objections on the development of the
school upon submission of a planning application by the successful
purchaser of the site

(e)  that discussions are underway to secure the rebuilding of the clock
tower, the clock face and mechanism, and the weather vane in
appropriate locations within the community

(f) that the Council is the legal owner of the site and buildings and
therefore does have the right to dispose of them

()  that Development Department will continue to progress the disposal of
the school to meet the targets of the Primary School Review, and
maintain an ongoing dialogue with Local Ward Members.

CHILDREN'S SERVICES

Deputation to Council - Adel Primary School

The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report in response to the
comments made by the deputation to Council by parents of pupils at Adel
Primary School with regard to building works at the school.

RESOLVED - That the Board supports the recommendations which
Education Leeds have made to the school as follows:

(@)  That the modified project be completed.

(b)  That the school review the success of the scheme during the next
academic year and prioritise any potential alterations, to be funded by
the school, through a premises development plan.

(c) That the school fully consult staff, pupils, parents and the local
community prior to any future projects.

(d)  That the authority use the issues raised by this project as a case study
to highlight the importance of stakeholder consultation on Capital
schemes to other schools.

(Having declared a personal and prejudicial interest Councillor J L Carter left
the meeting during consideration of this matter)

Deputation to Council - Proposals for Meanwood Primary Planning Area
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report in response to the
deputation to Council about the Executive Board’s decision to publish
statutory notices proposing the amalgamation of Miles Hill Primary and

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 20th September, 2006

Page 162



40

41

Potternewton Primary with a new primary school occupying the Potternewton
site.

RESOLVED - That the concerns expressed by the deputation and the next
steps in the process, as described in the report, be noted.

School Clothing Allowances

The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report on action taken
following a Council decision to increase the School Clothing Allowance
budget.

RESOLVED - That the action taken as a result of the Council decision to
increase the School Clothing Allowance budget by £400,000 be noted.

NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING

Office Accommodation - Neighbourhoods and Housing Department

The Director of Neighbourhoods and Housing submitted a report highlighting
the outcomes of the Option Appraisal and business case for the demolition
and disposal of South Point and the consequent relocation of Neighbourhoods
and Housing staff into alternative accommodation within the Departmental
Portfolio.

The report outlined the following options:

1 Remain in existing site with basic remedial works and essential
maintenance only

Major refurbishment of South Point

Demolish and rebuild at South Point

Dispose of South Point and purchase alternative accommodation
Dispose of South Point and lease alternative accommodation
Dispose of South Point and new build on alternative sites
Dispose of South Point and refurbish one of two existing Council
properties

NoO OTh~WN

The report detailed alternative courses of action in pursuit of the preferred
Option 5.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That approval be given to the disposal of the site at South Point

(b)  That staff from South Point be decanted into existing sites within the
Neighbourhoods and Housing Departmental portfolio (Housing
Services, Environmental Health and Community Safety), involving the
overall rationalisation of Neighbourhoods and Housing Departmental
office accommodation portfolio and the best placing of staff to deliver
services to their client groups.

(c)  That a new site be leased which will allow for all of the current Property
Management Service to occupy one ‘it for purpose’ site —the site
identified for potential relocation being at View Point in Bramley

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 20th September, 2006

Page 163



42

43

(d)  That the early negotiations for heads of terms in respect of View Point
at Bramley and, as a fall back position, Temple Point at Colton be
noted

Former Royal Park Primary School

Further to minute 152 of the meeting held on 12" November 2003 the Director
of Neighbourhoods and Housing and the Director of Development submitted a
joint report seeking approval for the marketing of the Royal Park property for
refurbishment or redevelopment as a mixed use development with the Council
retaining an operational presence in the form of a library and some community
space and retaining the freehold in the property but with no restriction as to
the make up of the scheme other than would be required through the planning
process.

The report outlined the following options:

1 To seek approval for a further £904,000 in mainline Capital Programme
funding for the original scheme.
2 The retention of the building by the Council and its preservation and

protection until such time as a sufficient range of Council and
community uses and funding streams can be identified

3 To dispose of the building for refurbishment, through the grant of a long
leasehold interest, with the Council retaining the freehold interest and
having the use of a library and some community space.

4 To market the site for refurbishment or redevelopment, with the
retention of Council interest through the freehold of the land, with
guidance as to the general form of redevelopment required, including
the incorporation of a library and other community space.

The report concluded that best consideration would be achieved through
option 4 with any other option being likely to represent a less than best
disposal.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That the work undertaken to test the viability of implementing the
proposals considered at the November 2003 Executive Board meeting
be noted.

(b)  That the decision made at the meeting of 12" November 2003 be
rescinded.

(c) That the property be marketed in accordance with option 3 above.

(d)  That the Board notes that the pursuance of any proposal resulting from
this decision will require the Council to use its powers under the 2003
General Consent to dispose of the property at less than best
consideration.

The Golden Triangle Partnership - Private Equity Model

The Director of Neighbourhoods and Housing submitted a report on proposed
expenditure of £1,000,000 in 2006/07 in respect of a scheme to assist local
people who are first time buyers, low income workers and households in need

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 20th September, 2006

Page 164



44

45

to purchase properties in the area defined as the Golden Triangle in the
Leeds, Harrogate and York districts.

RESOLVED - That authority be given for the injection into the Capital
Programme of £1,000,000 fully funded by Regional Housing Board grant and
that expenditure in the same amount be authorised.

Ombudsman's Report - Adaptations to a Council House

The Director of Legal and Democratic Services and the Director of
Neighbourhoods and Housing submitted a joint report on a recent finding of
maladministration and injustice by the Local Government Ombudsman with
regard to a complaint about adaptations to a Council house to meet the needs
of the disabled tenant.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That the Ombudsman’s report and findings be received and noted.

(b)  That the fundamental changes to procedure and policy instituted as a
result of the case be noted.

(c) That the Council’s response to the Ombudsman as set out in
paragraph 4 of the report be approved.

LEISURE

Leeds Grand Theatre Refurbishment Works

The Directors of Learning and Leisure and Development submitted a joint
report on the latest position in respect of phase 1 of the Leeds Grand Theatre
refurbishment scheme, proposals for phase 2 of the scheme and the
proposed heads of terms for the lease of the theatre to the Leeds Grand
Theatre Company.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That authority be given for an injection of £193,566 into the Capital
Programme to be funded by £150,000 from Opera North Trust and
£43,566 from Leeds Grand Theatre.

(b)  That the bringing forward of the £300,000 Arts Council England grant
from phase 2 works into phase 1 be authorised subject to the ACE
formal approval currently being sought.

(c) That £1,294,881 of Leeds City Council funding be brought forward from
phase 2 into phase 1.

(d)  That authority be given to incur additional expenditure of £1,788,447 on
costs associated with the phase 1 refurbishment works at Leeds
Grand Theatre (Capital Scheme Number 03611/PH1/000).

(e)  That the Board notes expenditure of £175,000 on fees on phase 2 of
the Grand Theatre (Capital Scheme Number 03611/PH2/000) for the
preparation and submission of applications to the Heritage Lottery
Fund and Arts Council England for grant aid towards the phase 2
works involving the selective refurbishment of the Grand Theatre and
the restoration of the Assembly Rooms.

(f) That the potential funding of £9.124m as outlined in detail within
paragraphs 3.8 and 3.9 of the report be noted, and that a further report

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 20th September, 2006

Page 165



46

47

48

be brought to this Board when both costs and funding have been
subject to further determination.

()  That approval be given to the Heads of Terms that have been
provisionally agreed with the Leeds Grand Theatre and Opera House
Ltd for their lease of the Leeds Grand Theatre.

Deputation to Council - Swimming Pool Horsforth

The Director of Learning and Leisure submitted a report in response to the
comments made by the deputation to Council by local residents for the
provision of a swimming pool in north west Leeds.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That the request to support a feasibility study into the provision of a
new swimming pool in Horsforth be part supported by the City Council
up to a maximum of £2,500.

(b)  That recognised, bona fide consultants be engaged to undertake the
feasibility study should match funding be found, and that the
consultants’ brief be drawn up in consultation with the Director of
Learning and Leisure.

ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE

Commissioning Plan for Mental Health Day Services

The Director of Adult Services submitted a report setting out proposals for the
modernisation of mental health day services, based on a more person centred
service model meeting an individual’s assessed needs flexibly, in their local
communities and wherever possible, within mainstream services rather than
in settings catering only for people with mental health problems.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That the plan for day services as outlined in the report be approved.

(b)  That the implementation of the agreed service model within the time
scales contained in the report be agreed.

(c) That further reports be brought to this Board as the new service is
implemented and further briefings be offered to Members through the
course of the project.

CENTRAL AND CORPORATE

Capital Programme Monitoring Update

The Director of Corporate Services submitted a report providing quarterly
monitoring information on the Capital Programme and highlighting the
continuing investment made by the Council in the city, explaining the
pressures on future schemes and providing details on the latest resources
and expenditure estimates for the capital programme.

RESOLVED - That the report be noted and endorsement given to the
measures being taken by the Director of Corporate Services, in liaison with
the other directors to ensure the affordability and sustainability of the Capital
Programme.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 20th September, 2006

Page 166



49

50

DEVELOPMENT

Deputation to Council - Withdrawal of Bus Services from Wetherby to
Tadcaster via Boston Spa

The Director of Development submitted a report in response to the deputation
received by Council at the meeting on the 21% June 2006 in connection with
the withdrawal of the 780 bus service between Wetherby and Tadcaster via
Boston Spa.

RESOLVED -That the Director of Development write to North Yorkshire
County Council and Metro informing them of this Council’s support for the
retention of this bus service.

Deputation to Council - Former Blackgates School at Tingley

The Director of Development submitted a report in response to the deputation
to Council by local residents against the sale, demolition and redevelopment
of the redundant Blackgates School at Tingley.

Following consideration of Appendix 1 to the report designated exempt under
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(1), and circulated at the meeting,
it was

RESOLVED - That the concerns of the deputation be noted but that the
disposal of the former Blackgates Infants School, Bradford Road, Tingley be
progressed as detailed in the submitted report.

DATE OF PUBLICATION: 18™ AUGUST 2006
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN : 25™ AUGUST 2006

(Scrutiny Support will notify relevant Directors of any items called in by 12.00
noon on Wednesday 30" August 2006)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 20th September, 2006

Page 167



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 168



	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	7 Members' Questions
	8 Adoption in Leeds - Session One
	Adoption in Leeds Appendix A
	Adoption - Session One - Report
	Adoption - Session One - Addendum 1
	Adoption - Session One - Addendum 2
	Adoption - Session One - Addendum 3
	Adoption - Session One - Addendum 4
	Adoption - Session One - Addendum 5
	Adoption - Session One - Addendum 6
	Adoption - Session One - Addendum 7

	9 Adoption in Leeds - Session Two
	Adoption in Leeds - Session Two - Report
	Adoption Sessn 2 Add 1
	Adoption Sessn 2 Add 2
	Adoption Sessn 2 Add 3
	Adoption Sessn 2 Add 4
	Adoption Sessn 2 Add 5
	Adoption Sessn 2 Add 6
	Adoption Sessn 2 Add 7
	Adoption Sessn 2 Add 8i
	Item 9a Sessn 2 Add 8ii
	Adoption Sessn 2 Add 8iii
	Adoption Sessn 2 Add 8iv
	Adoption Sessn 2 Add 8v
	Adoption Sessn 2 Add 8vi
	Adoption Sessn 2 Add 8vii
	Adoption Sessn 2 Add 9
	Item 9b
	Item 9bi
	Item 9bii
	Item 9biii
	Item 9biv
	Item 9bv
	Item 9bvi

	10 Youth Services
	Youth Services Appendix

	11 Work Programme
	Work Programme Appendix A
	Work Programme Appendix B
	Work Programme Appendix C
	Work Programme Appendix D


